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PART |
Preliminary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statemens

This Form 10-K and our 2013 Annual Report contaimvird-looking statements within the meaning oft®@c27A of the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended (Securities Act), and Sectldhdt the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as ameérfExchange Act). Forward-looking
statements are inherently subject to risks, uniceita and potentially inaccurate assumptions. Stiatements give our current expectations ol
forecasts of future events; they do not relatetyrio historical or current facts. All statementier than statements of historical fact could be
deemed forward-looking statements, including, withonitation, any expectations of revenue, expsnsash flows, earnings or losses from
operations, capital or other financial items; atatesments of the plans, strategies and objectizesanoagement for future operations; any
statements concerning product research, developameintommercialization timelines; any statemengsxpiectations or belief; and any
statements of assumptions underlying any of thegfming. We often, although not always, identifywfard-looking statements by using words

” o ” o« ”

or phrases such as the following: “likely”, “exp&cintend”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “estimate”, glan”, “project”, “forecast” and “outlook”.

We cannot guarantee that the results and othecttmns expressed, anticipated or implied in amwérd-looking statement will be
realized. The risks set forth under Item 1A of thism 10-K describe major risks to our businesd,yau should read and interpret any
forward-looking statements together with thesestigkvariety of factors, including these risks, lcbcause our actual results and other
expectations to differ materially from the antidigé results or other expectations expressed, patail or implied in our forward-looking
statements. Should known or unknown risks mategalr should our underlying assumptions provedueate, actual results could differ
materially from past results and those anticipaéstimated or projected in the forward-lookingetie¢nts. You should bear this in mind as you
consider any forward-looking statements.

Our forward-looking statements speak only as ofddes on which they are made. We do not undeetakebligation to update any
forward-looking statement, whether to reflect nefoimation, future events or otherwise. You areisely, however, to consult any further
disclosures we may make in our future reports @SEC on our website, www.psivida.com, or otherwise

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Introduction

We develop tiny, sustained-release products dedigndeliver drugs and biologics at a controlled ateady rate for weeks, months or
years. Utilizing our core technology platforms, Bsert™ and BioSilicon™, we are focused on treatroéohronic diseases of the back of
eye and are also exploring applications outsideh@tmology. We have developed three of the foutasned-release products for treatment of
retinal diseases currently approved in the U.Ewopean Union (EU), and our lead product candidaggan a Phase 11l clinical trial in June
2013. Our strategy includes developing productspeesdently while continuing to leverage our techgglplatforms through collaboration a
license agreements.

ILUVIEN ®, our most recently approved product, is an injaletasustained-release micro-insert that providestment of vision
impairment associated with chronic diabetic macattema (DME) considered insufficiently responsivevailable therapies over a period of
up to three years. ILUVIEN is licensed to and dmjdAlimera Sciences, Inc. (Alimera), and we aretk to a share of the net profits, as
defined, from Alimera’s sales of ILUVIEN for DME.l#nera commenced the commercial launch of ILUVIEN DME in the U.K. and
Germany in the second quarter of 2013 and exped#ihch in France in the first quarter of 2014e Titernational Diabetes Federation has
estimated that approximately 19.0 million peopleehdiabetes in the seven EU countries where ILUVHaN received or been recommended
for marketing authorization, of which Alimera hagtimated that approximately 1.1 million people suffom vision loss associated with DME.
Alimera is also seeking marketing approval for ILEX for DME in the U.S. In the second quarter ofl2pAlimera received a new
Prescription Drug User Fee Act (PDUFA) goal dat®ofober 17, 2013 after

1
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resubmitting its New Drug Application (NDA) for IMEN for DME. The resubmission responded to a sdddomplete Response Letter
(CRL) received from the U.S. Food and Drug Admiigon (FDA) in November 2011.

Medidur™, our lead development product, commenced thedfretir two planned Phase 1l clinical trials fbiettreatment of chronic
non-infectious uveitis affecting the posterior segtnof the eye (posterior uveitis) in June 2013dMer uses the same Durasert micro-insert
used in ILUVIEN and delivers a lower dose of thmealrug as our FDA-approved Retisert for postenaitis, which is licensed to
Bausch & Lomb. We are developing Medidur indepetigien

We are also developing a bioerodible, injectablerainsert delivering latanoprost (the Latanopfistduct) to treat glaucoma and oculal
hypertension. Under an amended collaboration agragrRfizer Inc. has an option, under certain cirstances, to license the development
commercialization of the Latanoprost Product worttiv

We are engaged in pre-clinical research with resjeelsoth our BioSilicon and Durasert technologgtfiirms. The primary focus of our
BioSilicon technology research is the sustained/epf of peptides, proteins, antibodies and othegé biologic molecules using our
Tethadur™ technology in both ophthalmic and nontbalmic applications. Our research program alstudes the use of Durasert technology
in orthopedic applications and for systemic deljef therapeutic agents.

Our FDA-approvedRetisertprovides sustained release treatment of postevigitis for approximately two and a half years asitidensec
to and sold by Bausch & Lomb.

Durasert™, Medidur™, Tethadur™ and BioSilicon™ aue trademarks. Retisett and Vitrasert are Baustlogb’s trademarks.
ILUVIEN ®and FAME® are Alimera’s trademarks. This Aral Report also contains trademarks, trade nanwsemice marks of other
companies, which are the property of their resgedivners.

Information with respect to ILUVIEN and its reguday and marketing status reflects information régaby Alimera.

Fiscal 2013, fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 mean &y ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, resggctive

Strategy

Our strategy is to use our proprietary DurasertBindilicon drug delivery technology platforms talependently develop new drug
delivery products for already-approved drugs amdbigics to better treat diseases in the ophthatréa and beyond, while continuing to
leverage our technology platforms through collabiors and licenses with leading pharmaceuticalldaogharmaceutical companies,
institutions and others. We believe our technolegi@n provide sustained, targeted delivery of sdatready-approved drugs and biologics,
resulting in improved effectiveness, better pat@mrhpliance and convenience, with reduced riskcarstl of product development for us. We
believe our proven track record of three approwedipcts demonstrates the effectiveness of thisegtya

» Develop Sustained Delivery of ¢Patent Drugs and Biologic8dany drugs and biologics either are or are sodretoff-patent. It is
estimated over the next 8 years that patent coeesdljend on products with world-wide sales agatitg over $50 billion
annually. We plan to use our technology platformdevelop products using off-patent and generigsiand biologics with a
significant market opportunity where either lesqfrent dosing through sustained delivery and/easd at the treatment site
through targeted delivery would provide a matdrigirovement to the effectiveness or conveniendd@briginal product. We are
optimistic that our BioSilicon technology can prdeisustained delivery of large biologic moleculgisich currently cannot be
effectively delivered by othe
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sustained delivery technologies. By focusing oriveey of alreadyapproved drugs and biologics, particularly thospinéng shorte
clinical trials, we believe we can minimize thekdsand financial investments required for prodysgraval.

» Continue Partnering with Leading Biopharmaceutiaal Pharmaceutical Companié&/e intend to continue to partner with
leading biopharmaceutical and pharmaceutical compamstitutions and others, where patent prateciievelopment and
regulatory costs, expertise or other factors makesirable for us to have a partner. For exanmpémy drugs and biologics that
might be more effectively delivered by our platfotechnologies, whether as a result of less freqdesing, targeted delivery or
otherwise, have extended patent protection, whichdcmake collaborations with the patent holdersetive. We might also
partner the development of products, includingptfent drugs or biologics that could materially éfétrfrom sustained delivery, k
would require expensive clinical trials or areri@atment areas outside of our technical expe@se.drug delivery technologies
could also permit companies to extend the patesteption on drugs coming e¢patent while offering an improved produ

» Expand Beyond Ophthalmolo¢While we are continuing to focus on our core ophmtii@competency, we are studying treatment o
diseases in other areas where we believe our tehnplatforms could provide a significant advargagor example, we are
studying the potential use of our technologiesrthapedics as well as in systemic release of tlerapagents

Market Overview
Delivery of Drugs and Biologics General

The therapeutic value of a therapeutic agent (sdmadi molecule or biologic) depends on its distiitnu to, and reaction with, the targe
tissue and other tissues in the body, durationegftinent, and clearance from the body. In an ideatment, the appropriate amount of drug or
biologic is delivered to the intended tissue abdaquate concentration and maintained for a seffiggeriod of time without causing adverse
effects to other tissues. Accordingly, the mannexfich a drug or biologic is delivered can berapartant element of the ultimate therapeutic
value of the treatment.

Drugs are frequently administered systemically kat dosing or by injection and subsequently dispethroughout the body via the
circulatory system. In the case of many drugs,esyit administration does not deliver them to thended site at an adequate concentratio
a sufficient period of time or delivers them inancentration that disperses too quickly, therehtyagchieving the maximum potential
therapeutic benefit. Because systemically delivelred)s disperse throughout the body, they ofteradreinistered at higher dosage levels to
achieve sufficient concentrations at the intendxs sSome areas of the body, such as the eyats,jbrain and nervous system, have natural
barriers that impede the movement of drugs to thosas, requiring the administration of higher dasfesystemically delivered drugs. These
dosage levels can cause harmful side effects wieedrugs interact with other tissues. In some cakags may be administered locally to the
targeted site, typically by injection. While thisagnavoid the issues of systemic delivery, problefmsufficient concentrations over time at the
targeted site remain. Timely and repeated admatistr of systemically and locally delivered drug®ften necessary to maintain therapeutic
drug levels over an extended period of time.

The administration of biologics is typically mor#fi¢ult than small drug molecules. Biologics geaky cannot be administered orally,
but instead are administered by injection or irdnsiDue to the size and complexity of biologicstained release formulations are difficult to
prepare and many biologics require repeated impstor infusions to maintain appropriate levelsrdkie course of treatment.

Patients often do not get drugs or biologics onsttteedule prescribed, or at all, because they tisaibadminister the products correctly
or do not go to medical professionals as requioecdministration. The risk of patient noncompliamecreases due to various factors, such a:
requirements to receive multiple products, complegainful dosing regimens, patient age, cognitimpairment or serious illness or length of
treatment.
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Repeated administration by injection or infusion casult in serious infections and other complaradi Further, repeated administration by
medical professionals is often expensive.

Due to the drawbacks of traditional drug and biaatglivery, the development of methods to deliym to patients in a more precise,
controlled fashion over sustained periods of tima medical goal. Methods for sustained drug dsfiireclude oral and injectable controlled-
release products and skin patches that seek t@iraghe consistency of the dosage over time arehdxhe duration of delivery. However,
most of these methods cannot provide constantralted dosage or deliver drugs for a sufficientngd duration for many indications,
particularly diseases that are chronic or requieeige dosing. There are currently very few appilauestained delivery products for biologics.

Ophthalmic Drug Delivery

Treating retinal diseases is a significant chakerue to the effectiveness of the blood/eye baiities difficult for systemically
administered drugs to reach the retina in sufficiprantities to have a beneficial effect withouwtede side effects to other parts of the body.
Injecting drugs or biologics in solution directhit® the back of the eye can achieve effectivepften transient, dosage levels in the eye,
requiring repeated injections. Examples include i@n® (pegaptanib sodium), Luceritis (ranibizumald) BYILEA @ (afilbercept), which ai
injected into the eye as frequently as approxinyageery four to eight weeks. Apart from inconvermierand cost, repeated intravitreal
injections carry risks, including intraocular infen, perforated sclera, vitreous hemorrhage ataraet formation.

Technology Systems and Products
Our two core technology platforms, Durasert and3ioon, have the following attributes:

. Extended Deliver. Our technology platforms can deliver therapeuticpredetermined periods of time ranging fromglayyears.
We believe that uninterrupted, sustained delivéfgre the opportunity to develop products that mdthe need for repeated
applications, thereby reducing the risks of patrricompliance and adverse effects from repeatedhéstrations,

. Controlled Release RateOur technology platforms can release therapeatiessustained, controlled rate. We believe thiat t
feature allows us to develop products that delpgimal concentrations of therapeutics and elingredcessive variability in dosir
over time.

. Localized Deliver\. Our technology platforms can deliver therapeutiesctly at a target site. This administration edlow the
natural barriers of the body to isolate and agsistaintaining appropriate concentrations at thgdssite in an effort to achieve the
maximum therapeutic effect while minimizing unwahsystemic effect:

Durasert Technology Syste

The Durasert technology platform uses a drug cdite @ne or more surrounding polymer layers to pdeviustained delivery of drugs.
Drug release is controlled by the permeabilityraf polymer layers. By changing elements of thegiesiie can alter both the rate and duratior
of release to meet different therapeutic needs.tee approved products, as well as our two cuprduct candidates in clinical trials, use
different generations of this technology system.
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The portfolio of our Durasert products and procrarididates being developed by us alone or in pattipewith others includes:

Product Disease Stage of Developmen Licensee
Retisert Posterior uveitis FDA-approved; commercialized since 2( Bausch & Lomk
ILUVIEN Chronic DME EU-approved (6 countries); NDA PDUFA date (OctoberAlimera
17, 2013

Medidur Posterior Uveitis Phase I None
ILUVIEN Dry age-related macular degeneration (Dry

AMD) Phase Il Alimera
ILUVIEN Retinal vein occlusion (RVC Phase Il Alimera
TBD Glaucome Investigato-sponsored Phase I/l clinical tri Option by Pfizel

ILUVIEN for Chronic DME

ILUVIEN is an injectable, sustained-release miarsert delivering fluocinolone acetonide (FAc) oagueriod of up to 3 years for the
treatment of vision impairment associated with aicdME considered insufficiently responsive to iéafale therapies.

DME causes swelling in the macula, the most semesfiart of the retina, and is a leading causeinflhess in most developed countrie
the working-age population. The International Dialsd-ederation has estimated that approximatelybélion people have diabetes in the six
EU countries where ILUVIEN has been approved, ahichéra estimates that approximately 1.1 milliorttudse people suffer from vision loss
associated with DME. There is currently no approsestained release drug treatment for DME in tH& Ot (other than ILUVIEN) in the EU.

ILUVIEN is licensed to Alimera, which commenced ttmmmercial launch of ILUVIEN for DME in the Unitekingdom and Germany
in the second quarter of 2013 and expects to laimEhance in the first quarter of 2014. Alimeraiso seeking marketing approval in the U.S
We are entitled to share in net profits, as defimedsales of ILUVIEN for DME by Alimera on a comyby-country basis. See “Strategic
Collaborations—Alimera” below. Alimera has compkbtavo 36-month Phase Il clinical trials (the FAMEtudy), which involved
956 patients in sites in the U.S., Canada, Eurogdradia, to assess the efficacy and safety of ILEN/in the treatment of DME. Combined
enrollment of the FAME Study was completed in OetoP007, the 24-month clinical readout was receiuddecember 2009, and 36-month
follow-up was completed in October 2010. The stafumarketing approvals in the EU and the U.SIf&fVIEN for DME and its commercial
launch are as follows:

European Union.Alimera has received marketing authorization fAU\WEN for DME in the U.K., Germany, France, AustrRortugal
and Spain. These approvals followed a favorablerdenation of approvability under the EU’s Deceliiesd Procedure (DCP). Marketing
authorization is pending in Italy, which participdtin the DCP. As part of this approval procesgnata has committed to conduct a five-year,
post-authorization, open label registry study dJMIEN in patients with chronic DME.

In the second quarter of 2013, Alimera commerciiynched ILUVIEN in Germany and the U.K. and expdo launch in France in the
first quarter of 2014. Alimera does not currentlgrpto expand the commercialization of ILUVIEN IDME in the EU beyond those three
countries until it achieves positive cash flows andtainability in those countries. Alimera congauo pursue pricing and reimbursement ir
EU countries and marketing authorization in Italy.
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In Germany, the Federal Joint Committee indicaled the obligation to submit a dossier on ILUVIEN DME, per the
Arzneimittelmarkt-Neuordnungsgesetz law, would Io@nhecessary, and that a benefit assessment watlitek mequired, which allowed
Alimera to launch ILUVIEN for DME in Germany withogprice restriction. Alimera is in the process etsring agreements for reimbursemen
with German statutory insurance funds so that Gerpadients will not be required to submit indivilfinding requests for reimbursement.

In the U.K., ILUVIEN for DME is currently only avkble for private pay and privately insured patses a result of final guidance from
the U.K.’s National Institute for Health and CarecEllence (NICE). In April 2013, Alimera submittadPatient Access Scheme (PAS) to NICE
to assess the likely impact of the PAS and to ddtex whether an update to NICE's previously issiieal guidance was warranted. In June
2013, the NICE Appraisal Committee published dgaftiance recommending ILUVIEN for the treatmenpséudophakic patients (those who
have undergone prior cataract surgery) with chr@NE considered insufficiently responsive to aviaiéatherapies. If NICE amends its
guidance to adopt this recommendation, ILUVIEN wido become available to pseudophakic patierttseit.K, which typically constitute a
large subgroup of chronic DME patients, with théi@pation that it would be funded in England an@lé through the National Health
Service.

In France, the Transparency Commission (Commisiéola Transparence or CT) of the French NationalltHeAuthority (Haute Autorit
de Sante) has issued a favorable opinion for timebigrsement and hospital listing by the French dfatl Health Insurance of ILUVIEN for
chronic DME considered insufficiently responsiveat@ilable therapies and despite optimized manageaialiabetes. In France, patients will
be reimbursed for 100% of the cost of ILUVIEN undédfection de Longue Duree, a program for sevem@wit disease, such as diabetes.
Alimera has reported that it will move forward witie next step in the process, which is to detegritie price and any reimbursement
conditions for ILUVIEN in France.

United StatesAlimera received a new PDUFA goal date of Octob&r2013 following its second resubmission of theANfor ILUVIEN
for DME in March 2013. Using clinical data availalifom the previously completed FAME Study, thisulemission focused on the safety
aspects of ILUVIEN and provided additional analyaesvell as information to support that ILUVIENsiafe and effective in the treatment of
the subgroup population of patients with chronic Bkbnsidered insufficiently responsive to availablerapies, the same subgroup for which
marketing authorization for ILUVIEN has been grahie six countries in the EU. Additionally, datasvsubmitted from a completed physician
utilization study for the ILUVIEN applicator andoim a special reading center assessment of photugdghe fundus, or the interior surfac
the eye, that were collected during the FAME stutlgpproved, Alimera intends to commercialize ILIEN directly to retina centers across
the US.

Alimera has previously received two CRLs concludingt the NDA could not be approved in its therrenr form. Alimera originally
submitted the NDA for ILUVIEN in June 2010, largédgsed on analyses of clinical data through mo#tbf2he Phase Il trials. In December
2010, Alimera received its first CRL, in which tRBA asked for analyses of safety and efficacy tlaaugh month 36 of the Phase Il trials
May 2011, Alimera resubmitted the NDA in resporséhe 2010 CRL, including additional safety andoaffy data through month 36 and
analyses of data for the subgroup of chronic DMiep#s.

In a second CRL received in November 2011, the [EDAcluded that the resubmitted NDA did not prosdéficient data to support that
ILUVIEN is safe and effective in the treatment aftipnts with DME. The FDA stated that the riskadferse reactions shown for ILUVIEN in
the Phase Il trials were significant and were affget by the benefits demonstrated by ILUVIENhose trials. The FDA further indicated that
Alimera would need to conduct two additional clalitrials to demonstrate that the product is safkeffective for the proposed indication. In
June 2012, Alimera met with the FDA to gain a brafiederstanding of the regulatory path for ILUVIENthe U.S. Alimera’s March 2013
resubmission responded to this CRL using data tltenFAME Study.

6
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Other DiseasedJnder our agreement with Alimera, ILUVIEN is alseilny studied in two Phase Il clinical trials foettreatment of the
dry form of age-related macular degeneration (AMBJl retinal vein occlusion (RVO). A Phase Il tsaldying ILUVIEN in the treatment of
the wet form of AMD has been terminated based omt@nim analysis, due to the determination thatehdpoint of reducing the number of
anti-VEGF injections may not be appropriate to astbe benefit of ILUVIEN in that disease.

Medidur for Posterior Uveitis

Medidur is our lead development product for thatiment of posterior uveitis, an autoimmune conditibaracterized by inflammation of
the posterior of the eye that can cause sudderadugl vision loss. This product uses the sameaiitgert used in ILUVIEN for DME, but is
administered with a different inserter than the owarcial inserter for ILUVIEN for DME. Medidur dekrs FAc, the same drug as our FDA-
approved Retisert for posterior uveitis, but atwadr dose, and is expected to treat posterior isv@it a sustained basis over a period of up to :
years.

In June 2013, we initiated the first of two planrithse Il clinical trials of Medidur for the treatnt of posterior uveitis. These trials are
expected to include clinical sites in the U.S.,dp#r and Asia. The trials will have a primary enddpof recurrence of posterior uveitis at 12
months and are expected to enroll approximately@Qi@nts in total. If the results of the triale aositive, we plan to use the data to submit a
NDA to the FDA. The FDA has permitted us to movedily to Phase Ill clinical trials and confirmétht we will be able to reference muck
the data, including the clinical safety data, frAlimera’s FAME Study of ILUVIEN for DME. We are deloping Medidur independently and
have not licensed the rights to Medidur for posteuiveitis to Alimera or any other third party.

Because Medidur delivers FAc, the same drug agbur-approved Retisert product for posterior uveitith@lgh at a slower rate, we
optimistic that Medidur will show efficacy compatalio Retisert. Further, as Medidur uses the sameornsert as ILUVIEN, we expect to
observe a side-effect profile in posterior uvgigients that is superior to that observed fordeetifor posterior uveitis and comparable to
ILUVIEN for DME. As a result, we are optimistic thisledidur will be efficacious for posterior uveitigth a more favorable risk/benefit prot
and fewer side effects than Retisert. Early intestata from an investigator-sponsored study is ebaisi with this hypothesis. Medidur is also
easier to administer than Retisert because ifésted in an office visit, whereas Retisert is ienjied in a surgical procedure.

In the U.S., posterior uveitis affects approximatel'5,000 people and is responsible for approxilm&@,000 cases of blindness, making
it the third largest cause of blindness in the U.S.

Retisert for Posterior Uveiti:

Retisert is approved in the U.S. for the treatnoémtosterior uveitis. Retisert is surgically impied through a 3-4 mm incision and
delivers sustained levels of FAc for approximat@lymonths. Retisert was approved as an orphanid2@05, which provided for seven-year
exclusive marketing rights. Retisert is license@#&wsch & Lomb, which sells the product in the WaBd pays sales-based royalties to us.

Vitrasert for CMV Retinitis

Vitrasert was our first product, approved in th&land the EU for the treatment of CMV retinitidlmding eye disease that occurs in
individuals with advanced AIDS. Vitrasert, whichsigrgically implanted through a 5-6 mm incisiomyides sustained delivery of the anitial
drug ganciclovir for six to eight months. Vitrasess originally licensed to and sold by Chiron Gogtion and subsequently by Bausch &
Lomb. During fiscal 2013, Bausch & Lomb discontidusles of Vitrasert following patent expiration.
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Glaucoma Latanoprost Product Candidate

In connection with our amended Pfizer collaboratiwa are developing an injectable, bioerodible dialivery micro-insert for the
treatment of glaucoma and ocular hypertension. Etanoprost Product is designed to provide longitesustained delivery of latanoprost,
currently the most commonly prescribed agent ferréduction of intraocular pressure (IOP) in pasiewth ocular hypertension and glaucoma
worldwide. This product candidate is based on atfogeneration of our Durasert technology systam,ia also anticipated to utilize our
BioSilicon technology. The micro-insert is desigriede injected under the conjunctiva into therscley an eye care professional in a
minimally invasive, outpatient procedure. This prodis subject to an option by Pfizer describedwalinder “Strategic Collaborations—
Pfizer”.

BioSilicon Technology Syster

Our BioSilicon technology system utilizes a fullgedible, “honeycomb” structure of nano-porous, ederal silicon to provide sustained
delivery of therapeutics. BioSilicon is biocompéiland biodegradable. Our primary focus is on Teh&', an application of our BioSilicon
technology designed to provide sustained delivéfgrge biologic molecules, including peptides,tpins and antibodies. In this application,
the sizes of the pores in the BioSilicon matenialmanufactured using nanotechnology to accommateteific protein, peptide or antibody
molecules, which are then released on a sustaim&d bver time. Our BioSilicon technology can dsadesigned to deliver smaller molecules.

Evaluation Agreement:

We have evaluation agreements with various companievaluate our Durasert and BioSilicon technpkgstems for the treatment of
various ophthalmic and other diseases.

Strategic Collaborations

We have entered into a number of collaborationibeeagreements to develop and commercialize odupt@andidates and
technologies. In all of our collaboration agreemsente retain the right to use and develop the uyidgrtechnologies outside of the scope of
the exclusive licenses granted.

Alimera

In a February 2005 collaboration agreement, wetgthAlimera an exclusive worldwide license to mamutfire, develop, market and sell
ILUVIEN for the treatment and prevention of humam eliseases other than uveitis. We also grantedeké a worldwide non-exclusive
license to manufacture, develop, market and sdthiceadditional Durasert-based products (1) tavéela corticosteroid and no other active
ingredient by a direct delivery method to the batkhe eye solely for the treatment and preventibeye diseases in humans other than uveiti
or (2) to treat DME in humans by delivering a compt by a direct delivery method through an incigionsmaller than that required for a 25-
gauge or larger needle. The non-exclusive licemdimited to those products that amongst othergshifi) have a drug core within a polymer
layer (with certain limitations regarding chemigabonded combinations of active agents), and @&)approved, or designed to be approved, t
deliver a corticosteroid and no other active inggetlby a direct delivery to the posterior portwirthe eye, or to treat DME by delivering a
compound by a direct delivery through an incisiequired for a 25rauge or larger needle. We are not permitted tparsgrant a license to a
third party to use, the licensed technologies t&ev@ sell any products that are or would be suligethe non-exclusive license granted to
Alimera. Following a March 2008 amendment, Alimassumed financial responsibility for the developtadricensed products and regulat
submissions, which had previously been shared.

Alimera has agreed to pay us a $25.0 million mileetpayment upon the first product to be approyethé FDA under the collaboration
agreement and 20% of any net profits, as definedates of ILUVIEN by Alimera on a country-tmpuntry basis, subject to an offset of 209
net losses, as defined, incurred by Alimera
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on a country-by-country basis. If Alimera sublicesgommercialization, we are entitled to receive 20 royalties and 33% of non-royalty
consideration received by Alimera, less certaimptted deductions.

Either party may terminate the collaboration agreetnfior the other party’s uncured material breaotien various conditions and upon
various bankruptcy events. We may terminate thialbofation agreement with respect to a particutadpct if Alimera notifies us that it is
abandoning or has abandoned such product, in vdaish the agreement provides for specific, exclugimedies.

Pfizer

In April 2007, we entered into an exclusive worldeiCollaborative Research and License Agreemeatdtiginal Pfizer Agreement)
with Pfizer for the use of certain of our technaésgin ophthalmic applications that were not li@hto others. Under this agreement, we
engaged in a joint research program, and Pfizeahagkclusive license to market any products d@eslainder the agreement.

In June 2011, we entered into an Amended and Res@dllaborative Research and License AgreemeatR#stated Pfizer Agreement)
to focus solely on the development of a sustaieéshse bioerodible implant designed to delivemiagpaost by subconjunctival injection. Unc
the Restated Pfizer Agreement, we granted Pfiz&xalusive option, under various circumstanceicemse the development and
commercialization of the Latanoprost Product woittiwfor human ophthalmic disease or conditionsrthen uveitis. If Pfizer were to
exercise such option, we would be eligible to reeéuture consideration of up to $166.5 million phoyalties. In addition, we regained all
rights to our intellectual property in ophthalmiapdications previously included in the Original &#fi Agreement other than pursuant to the
Restated Pfizer Agreement and we have rights teldpvand commercialize the Latanoprost Productizie? does not exercise its option.

Under the Restated Pfizer Agreement, Pfizer pai®2/3 million in cash as an upfront payment, andagreeed to use commercially
reasonable efforts to develop the Latanoprost Ritoatuour expense, and with technical assistammee Rfizer, for at least one year and
thereafter, at our option, through completion oagll clinical trials, as defined. Upon completafrPhase Il clinical trials, Pfizer has the
option to acquire, upon payment of $20 million exclusive, worldwide license to develop and comnadire the Latanoprost Product for
ophthalmic disease in humans other than uveitBfifer exercises its option, it must use commédyciaasonable efforts at its expense to
develop and commercialize the Latanoprost Procuntt,we are eligible to receive development, regeyaind commercial milestone payme
that could total up to $146.5 million and doubleitiroyalties based on net sales of the Latanofgtozduct. If Pfizer does not exercise this
option, we will have the right to develop and comeredize the Latanoprost Product on our own or waitbartner, with rights to Pfizer
intellectual property necessary to develop and ceroralize the Latanoprost Product. If we electdase development of the Latanoprost
Product prior to completion of Phase Il clinicahls, Pfizer also has an option to acquire, upgmyant of a lesser option fee, an exclusive,
worldwide license to develop and commercializeltatanoprost Product for ophthalmic disease in higtmaher than uveitis at its expense. In
this case, Pfizer must also use commercially residlerefforts to develop and commercialize the Lepaost Product, and we are eligible to
receive lesser development, regulatory and comiardlestone payments and a lower royalty on nietssaf the Latanoprost Product. If Pfi:
does not exercise this option, we will have thétrig develop and commercialize the Latanoprostiizbon our own or with a partner, with
rights to Pfizer intellectual property necessargéwelop and commercialize the Latanaprost Proditdywing a one-year cessation of
development activities.

Either Pfizer or we may terminate the RestateddPigreement for various reasons, including indhent of a material breach of this
agreement that is not cured within the applicable period or if the other party enters into bapkey or similar proceedings. Pfizer may
terminate this agreement at its sole discretio6®days’ notice. In the event Pfizer so terminabesf we terminate for Pfizer's material
breach, we have the right to develop and commeézeitihe Latanoprost Product.
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The Restated Pfizer Agreement replaces all ofititeés and obligations under the Original Pfizer égment, except for confidentiality
and indemnification provisions .

Pfizer owned approximately 7.0% of our outstanditagk as of August 31, 2013.

Bausch & Lomb

Under a 2003 amended licensing agreement, Baudaing has a worldwide exclusive license to make seibour first-generation
products (which, as defined in the agreement, dedlRetisert) as well as Vitrasert in return foratties based on sales. We agreed with
Bausch & Lomb not to develop, license or commeizgah product designed to receive regulatory apgravtreat uveitis, but only for so long
as Bausch & Lomb is actively commercializing a proicthe net sales of which bear the base royalalge to us that is not subject to any
royalty reduction or offset and Bausch & Lomb hasaeveloped or commercialized a uveitis produat ttoes not bear such royalties.
Bausch & Lomb can terminate its agreement with itlsaut penalty at any time upon 90 days’ writtenice

Intrinsiq

In January 2008, we granted an exclusive fields#-license to Intrinsiq Materials Cayman Limiteatiihsiq) for the development and
commercialization of nutraceutical and food scieapplications of BioSilicon, under which we recehaggregate license fee and minimum
royalty payments of $1.7 million through June 20hlFebruary 2009, we entered into gear supply agreement with Intrinsiq under whick
leased certain equipment to Intrinsiq used in mactufing BioSilicon material for total payments®if22,000. In July 2011, Intrinsiq
terminated its field-of-use license agreement, welpased the BioSilicon-related capital equipmeut iatellectual property assets of Intrinsiq
for $223,000 and assumed four Intrinsiq employees.

Enigma Therapeutics

Under a December 2012 license agreement, amendegstated in March 2013, Enigma Therapeutics ledh{Enigma) acquired an
exclusive, worldwide, royalty-bearing license fbetdevelopment of BrachySil, a BioSilicon produghdidate for the treatment of pancreatic
and other types of cancer. We received an upfembf $100,000, included in collaborative researuth development revenue in fiscal 2013,
and are entitled to an 8% sales-based royalty, @08ablicense consideration and milestones basedjgregate product sales. Enigma is
obligated to pay an annual license maintenanceff§&¢00,000, creditable during each ensuing tweteath period against reimbursable pa
maintenance costs and sales-based royalties. Erigmtne right to terminate its license upon 6Gsdgajor written notice.

Research and Development

Our clinical and pre-clinical research programsnariily consist of ophthalmic applications of ouchaology systems. Our research and
development expenses totaled $7.0 million in fi&€Hl3, $7.0 million in fiscal 2012 and $6.9 millionfiscal 2011. Of these amounts, $5.4
million in fiscal 2013, $4.2 million in fiscal 201@2nd $3.2 million in fiscal 2011 were incurred &msts of research and development personne
clinical and pre-clinical studies, contract sergicesting and laboratory facilities. Fiscal 20b%ts were reduced by a otiee IRS grant awa
of $208,000. All such costs were charged to opanatas incurred. The remaining expense of $1.6amilh fiscal 2013, $2.8 million in fiscal
2012 and $3.7 million in fiscal 2011 consisted ohftash charges for amortization of intangible @sskepreciation of property, plant and
equipment and stock-based compensation expensificgibcallocated to research and developmentq@engl. In addition, during fiscal 2012
we recorded a $14.8 million intangible asset impaint write-down, which is classified as a sepatategory of operating expenses in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive loss.
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Intellectual Property

Our intellectual property rights are crucial to tusiness. We hold or are licensed patents rel&tiiogir core technology systems in the
United States and international markets. The fdlgwable provides general details relating to@aned and licensed patents (including both
patents that have been issued and applicationbavatbeen accepted for issuance) and patent apptis as of August 31, 2013:

United State: United State: Foreign

Foreign Patent
Technology Patents Applications Patents Applications Families
Durasert 8 9 77 52 19
Tethadui 6 6 9 23 6
Other BioSilicon 13 4 70 4 21
Other 6 8 23 5 14
Total 33 27 17¢ 84 60

Employees

We had 25 employees as of August 31, 2013. Nowaiogémployees is covered by a collective bargaiaigigement.

Sales and Marketing

We have no marketing or sales staff. We currergjyethd on collaborative partners to market our prtsdBignificant additional
expenditures would be required for us to develomdapendent sales and marketing organization.

Reimbursement

The extent to which reimbursement of the cost efgioducts and the related administration procedisrand will be available from
government health administration authorities, gevaealth insurers and other organizations, andirttieg of those reimbursements, is
important to the successful commercialization osthproducts. The Centers for Medicare and MediSaitices designated Retisert as elig
for Medicare reimbursement at the rate of $19,84#h associated surgical fees reimbursed separagiéiyera has been engaged in regulatory
proceedings and negotiations with respect to mgieind reimbursement of ILUVIEN for DME in variousJEEountries where it has or expects
to receive marketing authorizations.

Competition

The market for products treating back-of-tge diseases is highly competitive and is charaetgby extensive research efforts and r:
technological progress. We face substantial comipetior our products and product candidates. Phaseutical, drug delivery and
biotechnology companies, as well as research azgons, governmental entities, universities, hiadgi other nonprofit organizations and
individual scientists, have developed and are seetki develop drugs, therapies and novel delivezthods to treat our targeted diseases. Mos
of our competitors and potential competitors argdg better established and more experienced avel $ubstantially more resources than
our partners. Competitors may reach the markeiegedinlan us or our partners, may have obtaine@uwoidoobtain patent protection that
dominates or adversely affects our products andrpial products, and may offer products with greaféicacy, lesser side effects and/or other
competitive advantages. We believe that competitoitreatments of back-of-the-eye diseases ischapen the effectiveness of the treatment
side effects, time to market, reimbursement anckpreeliability, availability, patent position, aother factors.
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Many companies have or are pursuing products & back-of-the-eye diseases that are or would b®ettive with our products and
product candidates. Some of these include theviirtig:

DME, AMD, RVO, etcGenentech Inc.’s products Lucentis (ranibizumaln) Avastin® (bevacizumab) block isoforms of vascular
endothelial growth factor (VEGF). Both products ejected directly into the vitreous on a recurrbrsis. Lucentis is currently
approved in the U.S. and the EU for the treatm&€BME, neovascular wet AMD and macular edema follgvRVO. The
relatively low-cost Avastin is approved to treativas cancers, but is used off-label for treatnamet AMD and diabetic
retinopathy. Studies are ongoing on the use of évas back-of-the-eye diseases. Genentech is dlyvbarned member of the
Roche Group. Novartis has the right to market aslid_sicentis outside of the U.S. Regeneron Pharntazas, Inc.’s product
EYLEA (aflibercept) is approved in the U.S., EU ahdkstralia for the treatment of neovascular wet AMitarketing applications
have been submitted in other countries and a AHadmical study for wet AMD is ongoing in Chin&YLEA, like Lucentis and
Avastin, is injected directly into the vitreous amegular basis. Phase 11l clinical trials of EYLE#x DME are underway, and
Regeneron has announced that it plans to filegpraval in DME by the end of 2013. Regeneron maistaxclusive rights to
EYLEA in the U.S., and Bayer HealthCare owns theesive marketing rights outside the U.S. Allerglt, has announced that it
has submitted marketing applications in the U. 9. Barope for OzurdeX (dexamethasone intraveal inipléds approved product
for posterior uveitis and RVO, in DME patients. &tltompanies, including Genentech, are workinghendevelopment of product
candidates and extended delivery devices for thenpial treatment of DME, wet AMD and RVO, includithose that act by
blocking VEGF and VEGF receptors, as well as usentdll interfering ribonucleic acids (siRNAs) tmabddulate gene expression.
For example, in January 2012, Genentech submittéB for an extended delivery device to deliverckntis. Eyetech, Inc.’s
product Macugen (pegaptanib sodium injection) isuaiir VEGF aptamer against VEGF 165. It has begmayed in the U.S. for
treatment of all subtypes of choroidal neovascuion in patients with AMD

Posterior UveitisPeriocular steroid injections and systemic delivargorticosteroids are used to treat posterioitisvéillergan,
Inc.’s product Ozurdex is a bioerodible, extended rel@atsavitreal implant that delivers the corticosid dexamethasone. Ozurc
is approved in the U.S. and EU for posterior useaid macular edema following branch or central R&@ has a duration of
therapy of three to five months. In addition, Aflan’s product Trivaris™ (triamcinolone acetonidiatable suspension) is
approved for uveitis and other inflammatory coruii unresponsive to topical corticosteroids. Mamyganies have ongoing trials
of posterior uveitis treatments, including Abbo#thloratories’ Humer& (adalimumab), Santen Pharmiaed@o. Ltd.’s sirolimus
drug DE-109, Novarti’ AIN457, XOMA Ltd.'s Gevokizumab™ and Genet'’s Lucentis

Glaucoma and Elevated IOFopical eye medications such as Allergan Inc.’s UGMIN ® (bimatoprost), Pfizer's Xalatah
(latanoprost), and Merck & Co.’s ZIOPTAN (tafluptpand Cosop? (dorzolamide/timolol) are daily eyeps used to treat
glaucoma and elevated ocular press

Many other companies, including GlaxoSmithKline,gibrombogenics NV and Novagali Pharma S.A., aekisg to develop drug
therapies or sustained delivery platforms for teatment of ocular diseases.
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Revenues

We operate in one segment. The following table sarires our revenues by type and by geographicatimt Revenue is allocated
geographically by the location of the subsidiargttbarns the revenue. For more detailed informaggarding our operations, see our
Consolidated Financial Statements commencing oe pat.

Year Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011
u.
U.S. U. K. Total U.S. U. K. Total U.S. K Total
(In thousands)
Revenue
Collaborative research and developrr $ 51C $27C $ 78C $ 93¢ $1,141 $2,08C $3,52¢ $83 $3,61:

Royalty income —
1,36¢ — 1,36¢ 1,44¢ — 1,44¢ 1,35:¢ 1,35:¢
$1,877  $27C  $2,14: $2,38: $1,141 $3,52¢ $4,88: $83  $4,96¢

Government Regulation

Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act and Compard&uaeeign LawsThe FDA and comparable regulatory agencies in §orebuntries
impose substantial requirements upon the clinieabtbpment, manufacture and marketing of pharmam@ytroducts. These agencies regu
among other things, the research, developmeningeshanufacture, quality control, labeling, staragecord-keeping, approval, distribution,
advertising and promotion of drug products. Thecpss required by the FDA under the new drug prorgsof the Federal Food, Drug, and
Cosmetic Act before our products may be marketaterinited States generally involves the following

e pre-clinical laboratory and animal tes

» submission to the FDA of an Investigational New @¢IND) application, which must become effectivédse human clinical trials
may begin

« adequate and wrcontrolled studies to establish the safety anda&dfy of the proposed pharmaceutical for its intenase;

e submission to the FDA of an NDA to obtain marketapgproval; anc

» FDA review and approval of the ND;,

The testing and approval process requires subalaintie, effort and financial resources, and vasigisstantially based upon the type,
complexity and novelty of the product. We cannotesdain that any approval will be granted on eetinbasis, if at all.

Pre-clinical tests include laboratory evaluatioritaf product, its chemistry, formulation and st&jilas well as animal studies to assess
the potential safety and efficacy of the produtte Tesults of the pre-clinical tests, together widnufacturing information, analytical data and
protocols for proposed human clinical trials, arbraitted to the FDA as part of an IND, which mustbme effective before the IND sponsor
may begin human clinical trials. The IND automdtichecomes effective 30 days after receipt byRB& unless the FDA, within the 30-day
time period, raises concerns or questions aboutahduct of the proposed clinical trials as outliire the IND, and imposes a clinical hold. In
such a case, the IND sponsor and the FDA mustvesaly outstanding concerns before clinical trgals begin. There is no certainty that pre-
clinical trials will result in the submission of &KD, or that submission of an IND will result irDA authorization to commence clinical trials.

Clinical trials involve the administration of theviestigational product to human subjects undestipervision of qualified investigators.
Clinical trials are conducted in accordance withtpcols that detail the objectives of the studg, plarameters to be used to monitor safety anc
any efficacy criteria to be evaluated.
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Each protocol must be submitted to the FDA as@fatie IND. Further, each clinical study must badwacted under the auspices of an
independent institutional review board (IRB) at th&titution where the study will be conducted. TR8 will consider, among other things,
ethical factors, safety of human subjects and pées§ability of the institution. Some clinical #is, called “investigator-sponsored” clinical
trials, are conducted by third-party investigat@sponsible for the regulatory obligations assedatith sponsorship of a clinical trial. The
results of these trials may be used as supportiteyltly a company in its application for FDA apptopaovided that the company has
contractual rights to use the results.

Human clinical trials are typically conducted imel sequential phases which may overlap:

* Phase I: The drug is initially introduced into healthy hamsubjects and tested for safety, dosage tolerabserption, distributior
metabolism and excretio

» Phase II: Studies are conducted in a limited patient pajreto identify possible adverse effects and yafisks, to determine the
efficacy of the product for specific targeted dsesmand to determine dosage tolerance and optosabe

» Phase lll: These trials are undertaken to further evalutiéal efficacy and to further test for safetyan expanded patient
population, often at geographically dispersed chhstudy sites

In the case of products for life-threatening diesasuch as cancer, or severe conditions suchralifigieye disease, or for products that
require invasive delivery, initial human testingiften conducted in patients with the disease ratian in healthy volunteers. Since these
patients already have the targeted disease orttamdhese studies may provide initial evidenceftitacy traditionally obtained in Phase Il
trials, and so these trials are frequently refetoedls Phase /11 or lla trials.

We cannot be certain that we or our collaboratiaerers will successfully complete Phase |, PhbsePhase Il testing of our product
candidates within any specific time period, if bt Burthermore, we, our collaborative partnerg, BEDA, the IRB, foreign regulatory authorit
or the sponsor, if any, may suspend clinical trélany time on various grounds, including a firgdihat the subjects or patients are being
exposed to an unacceptable health risk.

Once an approval is granted, the FDA may withditasvapproval if compliance with regulatory requirenseand standards is not
maintained or if problems occur after the prodeeiches the market. Later discovery of previousknown problems with a product, includi
adverse events of unanticipated severity or frequeor with manufacturing processes, or failureamply with regulatory requirements, may
result in revisions to the approved labeling to add safety information; imposition of pasiarket studies or clinical trials to assess newtg
risks; or imposition of distribution or other rastions under a Risk Evaluation Mitigation Stratd@EMS) program. Other potential
consequences include, among other things:

« restrictions on the marketing or manufacturinghaf product, product recalls, or complete withdragfahe product from the
market;

« fines, warning letters or holds on g-approval clinical trials

» refusal of the FDA to approve pending NDAs or seppénts to approved NDAs, or suspension or revatatigroduct license
approvals

e product seizure or detention, or refusal to peth@timport or export of products;

e injunctions or the imposition of civil or crimingknalties
The FDA strictly regulates marketing, labeling, adising and promotion of products that are plamedhe market. Drugs may be
promoted only for the approved indications anddooadance with the provisions of the approved labeé FDA and other agencies actively

enforce the laws and regulations prohibiting thenpotion of off-label uses, and a company that isitbto have improperly promoted off-label
uses may be subject to significant liability.
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The Food and Drug Administration Amendments Ac2@®7 (FDAAA) is designed to provide the public wittore easily accessible
information about the safety and efficacy of magkletirugs and the FDA with increased authority tsuea drug safety. The FDAAA requires
that we register each controlled clinical trialidasfrom a Phase | trial, on a website ( www.Claligials.gov) administered by National
Institutes of Health (NIH), including descriptivefdormation (e.g., a summary in lay terms of thelgtdesign, type and desired outcome),
recruitment information (e.g., target number oftiggzants and whether healthy volunteers are aec@plocation and contact information and
administrative data (e.g., FDA identification numg)eWithin one year of a trial’'s completion, infieation about the trial, including
characteristics of the patient sample, primary sewbndary outcomes, trial results written in lag technical terms and the full trial protocol
must be submitted to the website, unless the dasgibt yet been approved. In that case the infesmét posted shortly after product approval
has been obtained. The FDA requires certificatiocoompliance with all relevant FDAAA clinical triglreporting requirements during product
development.

The results of product development, pre-clinicatiis and clinical studies are submitted to the F3Avart of an NDA for approval of
the marketing and commercial shipment of the pradiiee FDA may deny an NDA if the applicable regaofy criteria are not satisfied, or m
require additional clinical data. Even if the addfibl data are submitted, the FDA ultimately magide that the NDA does not satisfy the
criteria for approval. As a condition of approvtale FDA may require a sponsor to conduct additicfiaical trials to confirm that the drug is
safe and effective for its intended uses.

Satisfaction of FDA requirements or similar reqoients of foreign regulatory agencies typically takeveral years or more, and varies
substantially. Regulatory authorities may delaykating of potential products for a considerablegeeof time or prevent it entirely, and may
require costly procedures in order to obtain retfpujeapproval. The time and expense required taintEDA or foreign regulatory clearance or
approval for regulated products can frequently edd@e time and expense of the research and dewetdpnitially required to create the
product. Success in pre-clinical or early stageicdil trials does not assure success in later sfagjeal trials. Data from pre-clinical and
clinical activities may not be conclusive, and nii@ysusceptible to varying interpretations, whichldalelay or prevent regulatory approval.
Even if a product receives regulatory approval,approval may be subject to significant limitatido&sed on data from pre-clinical and clinical
activities. The FDA or foreign regulatory authagtimay also require surveillance programs to moajpproved products which have been
commercialized and may require changes in labeling.

Once issued, the FDA or foreign regulatory authesitmay withdraw product approval for non-compliamgth regulatory requirements
or if safety or efficacy problems occur or are destmated in subsequent studies after the prodaches the market. Any product manufact
or distributed under FDA or foreign regulatory apyal is subject to pervasive and continuing regomatAll manufacturers must comply with
regulations related to requirements for record-kegpnd reporting adverse experiences with theympénd the FDA may also require
surveillance programs to monitor approved prodties have been commercialized. The FDA has the ptavequire changes in product
labeling or to prevent further marketing of a prodiiased on the results of these post-marketingranes. Even after initial FDA or other
foreign regulatory approval has been obtained, meuo collaborative partners could be requireddanduct further studies to provide additio
data on safety or efficacy or, should we desirgaim approval for the use of a product as a treatrfor additional clinical indications. In
addition, use of a product during testing and aftarketing approval has been obtained could residaleffects which, if serious, could limit
uses, or in the most serious cases, result in kenaithdrawal of the product or expose us to pmdiability claims. For certain drugs that the
FDA determines pose risks that outweigh the bexefiDA approval may be subject to the manufactucerstinued adherence to a REMS
program. REMS, which are tailored to specificalileess the risks of a given drug, may contain efesiiat restrict distribution of the drug to
certain physicians, pharmacists and patients,airréquire the use of communication tools suctetisrks to healthcare providers and patients
detailing the risks associated with the drug. Fpreegulatory authorities also regulate post-apglraetivities.
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Commercial drug manufacturers and their subcordraare required to register with the FDA and séagencies. Drug manufacturers
their subcontractors are also subject to periodannounced inspections by the FDA and state agefami€ompliance with good
manufacturing practices (cGMP), which impose procadand documentation requirements upon us anthadrparty manufacturers.

Healthcare Law and RegulatioHealthcare providers, physicians and third-partyopsiplay a primary role in the recommendation and
prescription of drug products that are granted eiamly approval. Arrangements with third-party payand customers are subject to broadly
applicable fraud and abuse and other healthcare dan regulations in the U.S. and other countmelsj@arisdictions. Such restrictions under
applicable U.S. federal and state healthcare lads@gulations include the following:

» the federal healthcare Artlickback Statute prohibits, among other thingsspas from knowingly and willfully soliciting, offérg,
receiving or providing remuneration, directly odirectly, in cash or in kind, to induce or rewaither the referral of an individual
for, or the purchase, order or recommendationmof,god or service, for which payment may be madeshole or in part, under a
federal healthcare program such as Medicare anddsiieigl

» the federal False Claims Act imposes civil penajtand provides for civil whistleblower or qui tattions, against individuals or
entities for knowingly presenting, or causing topgnesented, to the federal government claims fgnyaamt that are false or
fraudulent or making a false statement to avoidrefse or conceal an obligation to pay money tdettieral governmen

» the federal Health Insurance Portability and Accabitity Act of 1996, or HIPAA, imposes criminal duwivil liability for executing
a scheme to defraud any healthcare benefit programeking false statements relating to healthcaattars;

» HIPAA, as amended by the Health Information Techgglfor Economic and Clinical Health Act and itsplementing regulations,
also imposes obligations, including mandatory amttral terms, with respect to safeguarding theagsiysecurity and transmission
of individually identifiable health informatior

» the federal false statements statute prohibits kmgiy and willfully falsifying, concealing or covigrg up a material fact or making
any materially false statement in connection wligh delivery of, or payment for, healthcare bengfigsns or services; ar

» the federal transparency requirements under thétH€are Reform Law will require manufacturers afigs, devices, drugs and
medical supplies to report to the Department ofltdeand Human Services information related to payimiand other transfers of
value to physicians and teaching hospitals andiplaysownership and investment intere

Analogous state and foreign laws and regulationsh s anti-kickback and false claims laws, mayyampsales or marketing
arrangements and claims involving healthcare itenservices reimbursed by non-governmental thindypaayors, including private insurers.

Some state laws require pharmaceutical companiesnply with the pharmaceutical industry’s volugtaompliance guidelines and the
relevant compliance guidance promulgated by the féd®ral government in addition to requiring dmagnufacturers to report information
related to payments to physicians and other health providers or marketing expenditures. Statefargign laws also govern the privacy and
security of health information in some circumstanaeany of which differ from each other in sigrdiit ways and often are not preempted by
HIPAA, thus complicating compliance efforts.

Other LawsWe are also subject to numerous other federak atad local laws relating to such matters as safiing conditions,
manufacturing practices, environmental protectfive,hazard control and disposal of hazardous tem@lly hazardous substances. We may
incur significant costs to comply with such lawslaagulations now or in the future. In addition, ganot predict what adverse governmental
regulations may arise from future U.S. or foreigwgrnmental action.
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Foreign LawsWe and our collaborative partners are also sulijeitireign regulatory requirements governing hurdlarical trials and
marketing approval for pharmaceutical products soltheir countries. The requirements governingdbeduct of clinical trials, product
licensing, pricing and reimbursement vary widelydoyintry. Whether or not FDA approval is obtained,or our collaborative partners must
obtain approval of a product by the comparable legry authorities of foreign countries before mi@aeturing or marketing the product in
those countries. The approval process varies framntty to country, and the time required for thapprovals may differ substantially from t
required for FDA approval. There is no assuraneg thnical trials conducted in one country will Becepted by other countries, or that
approval in one country will result in approvalany other country. For clinical trials conductedside the U.S., the clinical stages generally
are comparable to the phases of clinical develope&ablished by the FDA.

Corporate Information

pSivida Corp. was organized as a Delaware corfmorati March 2008. Its predecessor, pSivida Limiteds formed in December 200C
an Australian company incorporated in Western Alistr On June 19, 2008, we reincorporated from Brastustralia to the United States (
Reincorporation). Except as otherwise indicatefibremces in this Annual Report to “pSivida”, “ther@pany”, “we”, “us”, “our” or similar
terms refer to pSivida Limited, a West Australiapgmration, and its subsidiaries prior to June TM& and refer to pSivida Corp., a Delaware
corporation, and its subsidiaries from such datkeskare amounts and all information relating tdiaps and warrants in this Annual Report
have been retroactively adjusted to reflect thex&mporation share exchange ratio, unless othemstéged. Our principal executive office is

located at 400 Pleasant Street, Watertown, Massatisu02472 and our telephone number is (617) 926-5

Additional Information

Our website address is http://www.psivida.com. infation contained on, or connected to, our welisitet incorporated by reference
into this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Copies of annual reports on Form 10-K, proxy statementsrtgtig reports on Form 10-Q, current
reports on Form 8-K and, if applicable, amendmémtiose reports filed or furnished pursuant toti8acl3(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, are available free of chaingeugh our website under “SEC Filings” as sooneasonably practicable after we
electronically file these materials with, or oth&®furnish them to, the Securities and Exchangar@igsion (SEC).

Information with respect to ILUVIEN for DME has bederived from public disclosures by Alimera.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
RISKS RELATED TO OUR COMPANY AND OUR BUSINESS
We have a history of losses and expect to contitmimcur losses for the foreseeable future.

With the exception of net income in fiscal 2010utéag from a norrecurring event, we have incurred operating losges our inceptio
in 2000. We do not currently have any assured ssup€revenues. Although Alimera launched ILUVIEdh@amercially in the U.K. and
Germany in the second quarter of 2013 and annoutgeédention to launch in France in the first geaof 2014, we do not know the timing
and extent of any revenues we may receive from [lEN/for DME. Unless Alimera receives FDA approvalloUVIEN for DME, we will not
be entitled to receive the $25.0 million milestgrasyment that would be due on such an approvalAéintera will not be able to sell, nor will
we earn any revenues from sales of, ILUVIEN for DMEhe U.S. We will not receive any funding under Restated Pfizer Agreement un
Pfizer exercises its option with respect to theahaprost Product, which becomes exercisable onlgi€omplete Phase Il clinical trials, which
have not yet been initiated, or if we cease devekqt of the Latanoprost Product prior to completbthose trials. There is no assurance that
Pfizer will exercise its option. Our Retisert rayaihcome from Bausch & Lomb is not expected taéase to a level sufficient to sustain our
operations and may decline. Further, we expedgtuficantly increase our research and developra&pense as a result of our independent
development of Medidur for posterior uveitis. Obiligy to achieve profitability is expected to deyk among other things, upon Alimera’s
ability to achieve FDA approval of and to succelgftommercialize ILUVIEN for DME and our or anyler licensees’ ability to achieve
regulatory approval and sufficient revenues frommowercialization of one or more products.

We expect to need additional capital resourcesund our operations, and our ability to obtain theis uncertain.

We expect to continue to generate negative caslsffoom operations unless and until ILUVIEN for DMiEhieves sufficient revenues
from commercialization or one or more of our pradeendidates achieves regulatory approval andcseiffi revenues from commercialization.
During the past three fiscal years, we have findrag operations primarily from the proceeds oéanffgs of our common stock and warrants
and consideration received from our collaboratiggners, including license fees and research anelggment funding. We currently have no
committed funding from collaborative partners. Wadidve that our cash, cash equivalents and mareetaiourities of $10.3 million at June 30,
2013 together with the $9.9 million of net proce&ds our July 2013 underwritten public offeringammon stock, expected Retisert royalty
income and other expected cash inflows under egistollaboration and technology evaluation agreamaeill enable us to fund our current
and planned operations through calendar year 2id.includes expected costs through that dateha® 111 clinical trials of Medidur for
posterior uveitis, but does not include any potmtiilestone or net profits receipts under the Aliencollaboration agreement. Our capital
resources would be enhanced if Alimera successfolfymercializes ILUVIEN for DME in the EU and if UWVIEN for DME were approved
and successfully commercialized in the U.S., algioeven so, the amount and timing of any such pé&s& uncertain. Accordingly, we expect
to need additional resources to fund our plannes®Hil trials of Medidur for posterior uveitis anther research and development and
operations. Our need for additional capital resesiwill be influenced by the following factors, amgoothers:

» whether, when and to what extent we receive rev@froen Alimera with respect to ILUVIEN for DME, ihading from
commercialization in the EU or upon any approvat@mmercialization in the U.S

* the timing and cost of development of Medidur foserior uveitis
« whether and when we initiate and complete Phaslknital trials for the Latanoprost Product andzEfiexercises its optio

» whether and the extent to which we internally funten we initiate, and how we conduct product dewelent and programs,
including with respect to our BioSilicon and Tethatechnology
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» whether and when we are able to enter into stragangements for products and the nature of tansagement:

» timely and successful development, regulatory apgdrand commercialization of our products and pomaandidates
» the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecgtimaintaining, defending and enforcing any patéaitns; anc

e changes in our operating plan, resulting in inceeas decreases in our need for cag

We may seek additional capital resources througlsipte sales of equity or debt securities or nellaborative or licensing agreements
and/or possible other agreements and transactidansy factors relating to our company, such as thtus of FDA approval of ILUVIEN for
DME, the status of commercialization of ILUVIEN fBIME in the EU, and the status of development afmoduct candidates, as well as the
state of the economy and the financial and creditkets, may make our ability to secure additioaital resources more difficult to obtain or
result in less favorable terms. If available, furgdthrough collaboration, licensing or other agreata may be on unfavorable terms, including
requiring us to relinquish rights to certain of ¢echnologies or products, additional equity firaganay be dilutive to stockholders, and debt
financing may involve restrictive covenants or ethefavorable terms and potential dilutive equifyadequate financing is not available if and
when needed, we may be required to delay, redecscibpe of or eliminate research or developmergrams, postpone or cancel the pursu
product candidates, including pre-clinical and icihtrials and new business opportunities, reduiaéf and operating costs or otherwise
significantly curtail our operations to reduce cash requirements and extend our capital.

If the recorded value of our intangible assets umd@AAP is further impaired, our financial resultsauld be materially adversely affecte

We recorded significant amounts of intangible assetonnection with earlier acquisitions. We tawlpairment charges of $3.1 million
with respect to the value of our Durasert intargésset and $11.7 million with respect to the valueur BioSilicon intangible asset as of
December 31, 2011. We had $3.4 million of intargjibésets on our balance sheet as of June 30, &04Bich $2.4 million related to our
Durasert technology and $1.0 million related to BigSilicon technology. We will continue to conduetpairment analyses of our intangible
assets as required, and we would be required eddéitional impairment charges in the future if a@coverability assessments of those asse
reflect fair market values that are less than eaorded values, and such charges could be sigmifitae carrying values of our Durasert and
BioSilicon technology systems could be impairethére is a future triggering event, including, weith limitation, adverse events with respect
to clinical development, regulatory approval andcass of commercialization of products using thtesbnologies, and significant changes in
our market capitalization. Further impairment clesrgn our intangible assets could have a matahadrae effect on our results of operations.

Our operating results may fluctuate significantlydm period to period.

Our operating results have fluctuated significafiityn period to period in the past and may contittudo so in the future due to many
factors, including:

» timing, receipt, amount and revenue recognitiopafments, if any, from collaboration partners, uinidhg, without limitation,
collaborative research and development, milestanlty, net profit and other paymen

» execution, amendment and termination of collabonatigreement:
* scope, duration and success of collaboration agrets)
» amount of internally funded research and develogmests, including pi-clinical studies and clinical trial:
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* general and industry-specific adverse economicitiond that may affect, among other things, our andcollaborators’ operations
and financial results; ar

» changes in accounting estimates, policies or griasiand intangible asset impairme

Due to fluctuations in our operating results, gedytcomparisons of our financial results may netessarily be meaningful, and inves
should not rely upon such results as an indicatfdnture performance. In addition, investors megat adversely if our reported operating
results are less favorable than in a prior periodre less favorable than those anticipated bystore in the financial community, which may
result in decreases in our stock price.

Our royalty income from Bausch & Lomb may decline.

We do not expect that our Retisert royalty inconoenf Bausch & Lomb will grow materially, if at alind it may decline. There is no
assurance that Bausch & Lomb will continue to maRetisert, which received marketing approval if20Bausch & Lomb no longer markets
Vitrasert.

RISKS RELATED TO THE DEVELOPMENT AND COMMERCIALIZAT ION OF OUR PRODUCTS AND PRODUCT
CANDIDATES

If the FDA does not approve ILUVIEN for DME, Alimea will be unable to commercialize the product ineth).S., and we will not recei\
payments to which we would be entitled upon suclprgval and from successful commercialization, whicbuld materially impair our
financial prospects

Alimera received a 2010 CRL from the FDA with resip® its NDA for ILUVIEN for DME and the 2011 CRin response to its first
resubmission of the NDA. In both the 2010 and 2CRLs, the FDA stated that it was unable to apptbeghen current NDA. Although
Alimera resubmitted the NDA a second time and resba new PDUFA goal date of October 17, 2013 etieeno assurance that Alimera’s
resubmission will demonstrate to the FDA that theddits of ILUVIEN for DME outweigh its risks, thatditional clinical trials will not be
required, that the subgroup of patients with chedME considered insufficiently responsive to aahblé therapies will be acceptable to the
FDA or that Alimera will be able to obtain regulat@pproval for ILUVIEN for DME in the U.S. Accondgly, ILUVIEN for DME may never
be approved and marketed in the U.S., in which waswould not receive the milestone payment to Wwiie would be entitled on FDA
approval or any revenues from commercializationictviivould be materially adverse to our businessthen, we do not know whether Alime
will continue to seek to develop, or receive apptdtom the FDA or other regulatory agencies fatJVIEN for the treatment of other eye
conditions currently being studied under Alimeralgeement with us.

Sales of ILUVIEN for DME in the EU may be materiafladversely affected by pricing and reimbursemeatidions of regulatory bodie:
insurers and others.

Prices, coverage and reimbursement in EU courdresegulated, with prices generally lower and ss¢e drugs more limited than in 1
U.S., which could continue to affect the amountesenues from the commercialization of ILUVIEN IDME in the EU. Alimera has been
engaged in regulatory proceedings and negotiatigtisrespect to pricing and reimbursement. Themisissurance as to what level of
governmental pricing and reimbursement will be pgéed, particularly in light of the ongoing budgatses faced by a number of countries in
the EU. For example, there is no assurance thgiatient population in the U.K. will expand beyaurivately insured and private pay patients
or what the level of permitted reimbursement wil Bhere can be no assurance that NICE will adbeptecommendation of the Appraisal
Committee and amend its final guidance to providéMIEN for the treatment of pseudophakic patientshat such patients will be reimburs
by the National Health Service. Similarly, theremtsassurance that Alimera will achieve satisfacamgreements with statutory insurers in
Germany to avoid individual reimbursement submissidlimera has reported its belief that saled &fMIEN for DME in Germany and the
U.K. have been adversely affected, and future sales
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those and other EU countries may be adverselytafleby pricing and reimbursement decisions, aoth sififects may be material.

We do not know if and when we will receive reventiesn any commercialization of ILUVIEN for DME in he EU and the extent of those
revenues.

There is no assurance if and when, and to whahextes will receive revenues from the commercidi@aof ILUVIEN for DME in the
EU. Although Alimera commercially launched ILUVIEN the U.K. and Germany during the quarter ender R013, there were limited sales
in that quarter. Alimera has announced its intent@mlaunch in France in the first quarter of 2044t has not announced commercialization
plans for the other EU countries where it has margeapproval. Alimera has no prior experiencedmenercializing products. There is no
assurance that Alimera will be able to build anchage a successful commercial operation in the Etdadrit will have sufficient capital to do
so. Further, because we are entitled to a nettgrafticipation on sales of ILUVIEN wherever Alineemarkets ILUVIEN directly and a
percentage of royalties and non-royalty consideratvherever Alimera sublicenses the marketing &MIEN, the amount and timing of any
revenues we receive will be affected by the maimemich Alimera determines to market ILUVIEN inha&r countries. Although Alimera has
reported that it intends to seek marketing approf#LUVIEN for DME in additional EU countries, the is no assurance that Alimera will
apply for or obtain any such additional approvelsither, we cannot project what the demand willdsdLUVIEN for DME in the EU
countries where ILUVIEN is marketed.

Both ILUVIEN and Medidur for posterior uveitis delier FAc, a corticosteroid that has demonstrated esidable side effects in the ey
which may affect the approvability and successluége micro-inserts for DME, posterior uveitis anther eye diseases.

Both ILUVIEN and Medidur for posterior uveitis dedir the non-proprietary corticosteroid FAc, whisrassociated with undesirable side
effects in the eye, such as cataract formationedenhted intraocular pressure, which may increlaseisk of glaucoma and related surgery to
manage those side effects. In the 2011 CRL, the Bafed that the risks of adverse reactions showthLtUVIEN for DME in the FAME
Study were significant and were not offset by thaddfits demonstrated by ILUVIEN for DME in thos@@tal trials. These side effects may
affect the approvability of ILUVIEN for DME and thather eye conditions for which it is being studiatthough FDA-approved Retisert and
our product candidate Medidur both deliver FAcraat posterior uveitis, there is no assuranceMeatidur will be safe and efficacious for the
treatment of posterior uveitis in light of its exped side effects from FAc. Even if these prodactdidates are approved, these side effects
adversely affect their successful marketing.

There is no assurance that Pfizer will exercise d@gtion with respect to the Latanoprost Producttbiat we will receive any further financial
consideration under the Restated Pfizer Agreement.

In June 2011, we amended our Collaborative Researth.icense Agreement with Pfizer to focus sotgiythe development of the
Latanoprost Product. Development of this produaufh Phase Il clinical trials is at our own experfizer has an option for an exclusive,
worldwide license to develop and commercializeltatanoprost Product upon our completion of Phasérlical trials or if we cease
development of the Latanoprost Product prior to gietion of those trials. There is no assurancewlgatvill commence or complete Phase |l
clinical trials for the Latanoprost Product; thiateompleted, the trials will be successful; thaz®f will, in any event, exercise its option; tlifat
exercised, Pfizer will commence Phase lll cliniclls; or that the Latanoprost Product will acldesuccessful Phase lll trial results, regulator
approvals or commercial success. As a result, isare assurance that we will receive any furtieanising, milestone or royalty payments
under the Restated Pfizer Agreement.
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If we or our licensees are unable to or do not coetp clinical trials for our product candidates ato not receive the necessary regulatt
approvals, we or our licensees will be unable tarooercialize our product candidates.

Our current and future activities are and will bbject to stringent regulation by governmental atittes both in the U.S. and other
countries in which our products are marketed. Befee or our licensees can manufacture, marketehersy of our product candidates,
approval from the FDA and/or foreign regulatoryhaarities is required to market in the applicablesdictions. Generally, in order to obtain
these approvals, pre-clinical studies and clinidals must demonstrate that a product candidatafis for human use and effective for its
targeted disease or condition.

ILUVIEN for DME has completed pivotal clinical tis which were conducted pursuant to our Alimeriéaboration agreement, and
Medidur for posterior uveitis has commenced th&t fif two pivotal Phase Il clinical trials. All afur other product development is at earlier
stages. An investigator-sponsored Phase I/l stifidige Latanoprost Product is ongoing, but we haatecommenced Phase Il clinical trials,
and BioSilicon and Tethadur product candidatesaiie the pre-clinical stage. Product developnerdll stages involves a high degree of risk
and only a small proportion of research and devekat programs result in product candidates thahcky to pivotal clinical trials or to
approved products. There is no assurance thatai@iuagreements we have with third parties walitein any product candidates or licenses.
or that we or our licensees will commence or carginlinical trials for any of our product candidatH clinical trials conducted by or for us or
our licensees for any of our product candidatesatgrovide the necessary evidence of safety dichey, those product candidates cannot be
manufactured and sold, and will not generate re@enimitial or subsequent clinical trials may netihitiated by or for us or our licensees for
product candidates or may be delayed or fail duaday factors, including the following:

» decisions by parties evaluating our technologiggmpursue development of products with

» our (or our licenser) lack of sufficient funding to pursue trials rapidiy at all;

» our (or our licenser) inability to attract clinical investigators for ais;

» our (or our licenser) inability to recruit patients in sufficient numbersat the expected rai

» our inability to find or reach agreement with liseles to undertake clinical tria

» decisions by licensees not to exercise optionprfoducts and not to pursue products licensed to;t
* adverse side effect

» failure of trials to demonstrate a product candi's safety and efficac

» our (or our licensees’) failure to meet FDA or athegulatory agency requirements for clinical tdakign or inadequate clinical
trial design;

« our (or our license() inability to follow patients adequately after tneent;
» changes in the design or manufacture of a prot

» failures by, changes in our (or our licenseesatiehship with, or other issues at contract researganizations, third-party vendors
and investigators responsible for -clinical testing and clinical trials

« our (or our licenser) inability to manufacture sufficient quantities oftarials for use in clinical trial:
» stability issues with material

» failure to comply with current good laboratory piees (GLP), good clinical practices (GCP) or goeghufacturing practices or
similar foreign regulatory requirements that affénet conduct of pi-clinical and clinical studies and the manufacturifigproducts
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* requests by regulatory authorities for additioretbdor clinical trials

» governmental or regulatory agency assessmentséflimical or clinical testing that differs from o(or our licensees’)
interpretations or conclusions that product candslaneet quality standards for stability, qualityrity and potency

» governmental or regulatory delays, or changes jmm@al policies or regulations; al
» developments, clinical trial results and otherdastwith respect to competitive products and treatis

Results from pre-clinical testing and early clinig@ls often do not accurately predict resultdatér clinical trials. Data obtained from
pre-clinical and clinical activities are suscemibd varying interpretations, which may delay, tiai prevent regulatory approval. Data from
pre-clinical studies, early clinical trials andantm periods in multi-year trials are preliminamndamay change, and final data from pivotal trials
for such products may differ significantly. Adverside effects may develop that delay, limit or grevthe regulatory approval of products, or
cause such regulatory approvals to be limited eneescinded. Additional trials necessary for aparmay not be undertaken or may
ultimately fail to establish the safety and effigax our product candidates.

The FDA or other relevant regulatory agencies matyapprove our product candidates for manufactadesale, and any approval by the
FDA does not ensure approval by other regulatogneigs or vice versa (which could require us tomgrwith numerous and varying
regulatory requirements, possibly including addisibclinical testing). Any product approvals weoorr licensees achieve could also be
withdrawn for failure to comply with regulatory s@ards or due to unforeseen problems after theuptedmarketing approval. In either case,
marketing efforts with respect to the affected picidvould have to cease. In addition, the FDA deotregulatory agencies may impose
limitations on the indicated uses for which a prtduay be marketed, which may reduce the size off@rwise limit the potential market for
the product.

In addition to testing, regulatory agencies impesgous requirements on manufacturers and selfggsoducts under their jurisdiction,
such as packaging, labeling, manufacturing prastieeord keeping and reporting. Regulatory agsnuoigy also require postarketing testin
and surveillance programs to monitor a productfisa$. Furthermore, changes in existing regulat@mre adoption of new regulations could
prevent us from obtaining, or affect the timing foture regulatory approvals.

We have a limited ability to develop and market guats ourselves. If we are unable to find developrer marketing partners, or our
development or marketing partners do not succedgfdevelop or market our products, we may be unableffectively develop and market
products on our own

Our strategy includes independently developing pcts] but we have limited product development céippbnd no marketing or sales
staff. Developing products and achieving markeeptance for them can require extensive and sulatafforts by experienced personnel as
well as expenditure of significant funds. We may Io@ able to establish or fund sufficient capab#ihecessary to develop products and
achieve market penetration ourselves.

Our business strategy also includes entering iollatmorative and licensing arrangements for thestigyment and commercialization of
our product candidates, where appropriate, andunreiatly have collaboration and/or licensing aremgnts with Alimera, Pfizer, Bausch &
Lomb and Enigma. The curtailment or terminatiomoy of these arrangements could adversely affadbasiness, our ability to develop and
commercialize our products, product candidatespaiagosed products and our ability to fund operation

The success of these and future collaborative iaadding arrangements will depend heavily on theegence, resources, efforts and
activities of our licensees. Our licensees have,aar expected to have, significant discretion akimg decisions related to the development o
product candidates and the
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commercialization of products under these collatimneagreements. Risks that we face in connectiitim @ur collaboration and licensing
strategy include the following:

» our collaborative and licensing arrangements are aae expected to be, subject to termination undeous circumstances,
including on short notice and without cau

* we are required, and expect to be required, ungiecalaborative and licensing arrangements nabittduct specified types of
research and development in the field that is thgest of the arrangement or not to sell produttsuich field, limiting the areas of
research, development and commercialization thatamepursue

» our licensees may be permitted to develop and caniatize, either alone or with others, productg tiva similar to or competitive
with our products

» our licensees may change the focus of their dewedop and commercialization efforts or decreasaibtd increase spending
related to our products or product candidatesgthelimiting the ability of these products to redbhir potential

« our licensees may lack the funding, personnel peggnce to develop and commercialize our prodsustsessfully or may
otherwise fail to do so; ar

e our licensees may not perform their obligationsyhrole or in part

To the extent that we seek to independently matufacmarket and sell products or are unable terénto future license agreements
with marketing and sales partners where we deemopppte, we would experience increased capitalireqents to develop the ability to
manufacture, market and sell future products. Tharebe no assurance that we will be able to matws market or sell our products or
future products independently.

Our current licensees may terminate their agreememtith us at any time, and if they do, we will lotbe benefits of those agreements and
may not be able to develop and sell products cutlelicensed to them.

Our licensees have rights of termination underamreements with them. Exercise of termination gdiyt one or more of our licensees
may leave us without the financial benefits andetlgyment, marketing or sales resources provideémhe terminated agreement, which may
have an adverse effect on our business, finanoiaiton and results of operations. Additionallyr anterests may not continue to coincide
with those of our partners, and our partners magldg, independently or with third parties, produat technologies that could compete with
our products. Further, we may disagree with outrgas over the rights and obligations under th@seements, including ownership of
technologies or other proprietary interests, noretition, payments or other issues, which couldltes breach of the agreements, including
related damages or injunctive relief or termination

For example, Pfizer may terminate the RestatecePAgreement with respect to the Latanoprost Prodithout penalty at any time and
for any reason upon 60 days’ written notice, Bau&ttomb may terminate its license agreement wipeet to Retisert without penalty at any
time upon 90 days’ written notice and Alimera magrdon the development and commercialization ofli@eypsed product, including
ILUVIEN for DME, at any time.

Any of our licensees may decide not to continudgeelop, exercise options or commercialize producter their respective agreeme
change strategic focus, or pursue alternative molyies instead of our technologies or develop cating products. While Pfizer and Bausc|
Lomb have significant experience in the ophthalfigltl and have substantial resources, there isseorance whether, and to what extent, that
experience and those resources will be devotedrtteghnologies. Alimera has limited experience Eméed financial resources, and
ILUVIEN for DME is Alimera’s first commercial prodi. Actions, including breaches or terminationtage agreements by our licensees,
could delay, impair or stop the development or
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commercialization of any of the products or prodtantdidates licensed to them or require signifieaiditional capital investment by us, which
we may not have the resources to fund.

If products of our competitors receive regulatorproval or reach the market earlier, are more effee, have fewer side effects, are mc
effectively marketed or cost less, our productgpooduct candidates may not be approved, may noti@wh the sales we anticipate and could
be rendered obsolete.

We believe that pharmaceutical, drug delivery aiotelshnology companies, research organizationsemgorental entities, universities,
hospitals, other nonprofit organizations and indiixl scientists are seeking to develop drugs, piesaproducts, approaches or methods to
our targeted diseases or their underlying causeangny of our targeted diseases, competitors hiwmate therapies that are already
commercialized or are in various stages of devetagmanging from discovery to advanced clinicallfi For example, Lucentis has been
approved to treat patients with DME in the U.S. &tl and Bayer HealthCare and Regeneron haveutetiPhase Il studies of EYLEA,
already approved in the U.S. and Australia to tvestt AMD, to treat DME. Any of these drugs, theegiproducts, approaches or methods
receive government approval or gain market acceptamore rapidly than our products and product atatds, may offer therapeutic or cost
advantages, or may more effectively treat our tedjdiseases or their underlying causes, whichdo@dult in our product candidates not b
approved, reduce demand for our products and ptadunclidates or render them noncompetitive or @ltsol

Many of our competitors and potential competitaasensubstantially greater financial, technologiocedearch and development,
marketing and personnel resources than we do. @upetitors may succeed in developing alternatent@olgies and products that, in
comparison to the products we have and are seékidgvelop:

» are more effective and easier to L

e are more economice

* have fewer side effect

» offer other benefits; c

* may otherwise render our products less competitiv@bsolete

Many of these competitors have greater experiemdeveloping products, conducting clinical trialbtaining regulatory approvals or
clearances and manufacturing and marketing prodiatswe do.

Our products and product candidates may not achiewel maintain market acceptance and may never gatesignificant revenues.

In both domestic and foreign markets, the commesciecess of our products and product candidatiksaguire not only obtaining
regulatory approvals but also obtaining market ptarece by retinal specialists and other doctorseips, government health administration
authorities and other third-party payors. Whethet # what extent our products and product cand&athieve and maintain market
acceptance will depend on a number of factorsudino demonstrated safety and efficacy, cost-dffeness, potential advantages over other
therapies, our and our collaborative partners’ ratinky and distribution efforts and the reimbursenpesticies of government and other third-
party payors. In particular, if government and otthérd-party payors do not provide adequate cayernd reimbursement levels for or
recommend our products and product candidatesnénket acceptance of our products and product dates will be limited. Both
government and other third-party payors attemgbtttain healthcare costs by limiting coverage &edevel of reimbursement for products
and, accordingly, they might challenge the price emst-effectiveness of our products, or refusertwide coverage for our products. If our
products and product candidates fail to achieveraaihtain market acceptance, they may fail to gaeesignificant revenues and our business
may be significantly harmed.
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Guidelines, recommendations and studies publishgd/brious organizations could reduce the use of guoducts and product candidates.

Government agencies, professional societies, prantanagement groups, private health and sciencelftions and organizations
focused on various diseases may publish guidelreesmmendations or studies related to our prodauaisproduct candidates or our
competitors’ products. Any such guidelines, recomdagions or studies that reflect negatively ongmaducts or product candidates could
result in decreased use, sales of, and revenumsdine or more of our products and product candsd&terthermore, our success depends in
part on our and our partners’ ability to educataltheare providers and patients about our prodardisproduct candidates, and these educatio
efforts could be rendered ineffective by, amongpthings, third-parties’ guidelines, recommendaior studies.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

We rely heavily upon patents and trade secretsrimtgct our proprietary technologies. If we fail forotect our intellectual property or
infringe on others’ technologies, our ability to delop and market our products and product candidateay be compromised.

Our success is dependent on whether we can olaténtg, defend our existing patents and operateuiitinfringing on the proprietary
rights of third parties. As of August 31, 2013, lasd 212 patents and 111 pending patent applicaiiocisading patents and pending
applications covering our Durasert, BioSilicon (uding Tethadur) and other technologies. Intellatproperty protection of our technologies
is uncertain. We expect to seek to patent and girote proprietary technologies. However, themnedsassurance that any additional patents
be issued to us as a result of our pending ordypatent applications or that any of our patentiswithstand challenges by others. In addition,
we may not have sufficient funds to patent andgmtobur proprietary technologies to the extent Watvould desire, or at all. If we were
determined to be infringing any third-party patem, could be required to pay damages, alter oudymts or processes, obtain licenses, pay
royalties or cease certain operations. We may adatiibe to obtain any required licenses on commrdavorable terms, if at all. In addition,
many foreign country laws may treat the protectbproprietary rights differently from, and may rmbtect our proprietary rights to the same
extent as, laws in the United States and Paterdpgeoation Treaty countries.

Prior art may reduce the scope or protection ofipealidate, our patents. Previously conductedaegeor published discoveries may
prevent our patents from being granted, invalidegaed patents or narrow the scope of any protectidained. Reduction in scope of
protection or invalidation of our licensed or owrgatents, or our inability to obtain patents, magtde other companies to develop products
that compete with our products and product cand&lah the basis of the same or similar technol&gya result, our patents and those of our
licensors may not provide any or sufficient pratmttagainst competitors. While we have not beed,a® not currently involved in, any
litigation over intellectual property, such litigah may be necessary to enforce any patents issuézensed to us or to determine the scope
validity of third party proprietary rights. We majso be sued by one or more third parties alletiiagwe infringe their intellectual property
rights. Any intellectual property litigation woultk likely to result in substantial costs to us diwrsion of our efforts, and could prevent or
delay our discovery or development of product cdatdis. If our competitors claim technology alsonetd by us, and if they prepare and file
patent applications in the U.S. or other jurisdieti, we may have to participate in interference@edings declared by the U.S. Patent and
Trademark Office or the appropriate foreign patdfite to determine priority of invention, whichwd result in substantial cost to us and
diversion of our efforts. Any such litigation ortémference proceedings, regardless of the outcoodd be expensive and time consuming.
Litigation could subject us to significant liabiéis to third parties, requiring disputed rightd#&licensed from third parties and/or requiring us
to cease using certain technologies.

We also rely on trade secrets, know-how and tedyyathat are not protected by patents to maintaimcompetitive position. We try to
protect this information by entering into confidiatity agreements with parties that have acce#s soch as our corporate partners,
collaborators, employees, and consultants. Anhedé
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parties could breach these agreements and dismlwsmnfidential information, or our competitorsyraarn of the information in some other
way. If any material trade secret, know-how or otieehnology not protected by a patent were toibelased to or independently developed by
a competitor, our competitive position could be eniaily harmed.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS, INDUSTRY, STRATEGY AND OPERATIONS
If we fail to retain key personnel, our businessudd suffer.

We are dependent upon the principal members ofmaumagement and scientific staff. In addition, whelve that our future success in
developing our products and achieving a competjtivgition may depend on whether we can attractetaéh additional qualified managem:
and scientific personnel. There is strong compmetifor management and scientific personnel withaitdustry in which we operate, and we
may not be able to attract and retain such perdoAsave have a small number of employees and Wievseour products are unique and
highly specialized, the loss of the services of onmore of the principal members of our manageroestientific staff, or the inability to
attract and retain additional personnel and develgertise as needed, could have a material ade#est on our results of operations and
financial condition.

If we are subject to product liability suits, we maot have sufficient insurance to cover damag

The testing, manufacturing, and marketing and afibe products utilizing our technologies invohgks that product liability claims
may be asserted against us and/or our licenseesutrent clinical trial and product liability insance may not be adequate to cover damage:
resulting from product liability claims. Regardlesfsheir merit or eventual outcome, product lidhitlaims could require us to spend
significant time, money and other resources tomtéfich claims, could result in decreased demanolfioproducts and product candidates or
result in reputational harm, and could result i playment of a significant damage award. Our proliflaility insurance coverage is subject to
deductibles and coverage limitations and may natdegjuate in scope to protect us in the evensataessful product liability claim. Further,
we may not be able to acquire sufficient clinicaltor product liability insurance in the futura ceasonable commercial terms, if at all.

Consolidation in the pharmaceutical and biotechngip industries may adversely affect us.

There has been consolidation in the pharmacewitdbiotechnology industries. Consolidation coelsit in the remaining companies
having greater financial resources and technolbgagabilities, thus intensifying competition, aiegver potential collaboration partners or
licensees for our product candidates. In additiioa consolidating company is already doing bussnggh our competitors, we could lose
existing or potential future licensees or collaltiorapartners as a result of such consolidation.

If we or our licensees fail to comply with envirorental laws and regulations, our or their ability tmanufacture and commercializ
products may be adversely affectt

Medical and biopharmaceutical research and devedopmvolves the controlled use of hazardous malersuch as radioactive
compounds and chemical solvents. We and our lieanaee subject to federal, state and local lawsegulations in the U.S. and abroad
governing the use, manufacture, storage, handhdgdésposal of such materials and waste productsakid they could be subject to both
criminal liability and civil damages in the everitam improper or unauthorized release of, or expostiindividuals to, hazardous materials. In
addition, claimants may sue us or them for resgliijury or contamination, and the liability mayoeed our or their ability to pay. Compliance
with environmental laws and regulations is expemsand current or future environmental regulatioray impair the research, development or
production efforts of our company or our licensaad harm our operating results.
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If we or our licensees encounter problems with prad manufacturing, there could be delays in produdvelopment or commercializatio
which would adversely affect our future profitabiii.

Our ability and that of our licensees to condumietly pre-clinical and clinical research and develept programs, obtain regulatory
approvals, and develop and commercialize our prochurdidates will depend, in part, upon our andlieensees’ ability to manufacture our
products and product candidates, either directiphiugh third parties, in accordance with FDA atiger regulatory requirements. The
manufacture, packaging and testing of our prodaistsproduct candidates are regulated by the FDAsanithr foreign regulatory entities and
must be conducted in accordance with applicable BGKid comparable foreign requirements. Any chamgemanufacturing process or
procedure used for one of our products or prodastiidates, including a change in the location atkwh product or product candidate is be
manufactured or in the third-party manufacturenfaised, may require the FDA’s and similar foreiggulatory entities’ prior review and/or
approval in accordance with applicable cGMP or othgulations. Additionally, the FDA and similarégn regulatory entities may implems
new standards, or change their interpretation afareement of existing standards, for the manufactpackaging and testing of products at
any time.

There are a limited number of manufacturers thatate under cGMP and other foreign regulationsdahaboth capable of manufactur
our products and product candidates and are witbndp so. Alimera has contracted with third-pamgnufacturers with respect to the
manufacture of components of ILUVIEN. Failure by asr collaborative partners, or our or their thparty manufacturers, to comply with
applicable manufacturing requirements could rasudinctions being imposed on us, including fimgsinctions, civil penalties, failure of
regulatory authorities to grant marketing apprafabur product candidates, delays, suspension thidwawal of approvals, license revocation,
seizures or recalls of product, operating restictiand criminal prosecutions. In addition, we ur anllaborative partners may not be able to
manufacture our product candidates successfulhawe a third party manufacture them in a cost-&ffeananner. If we or our collaborative
partners are unable to develop our own manufagfdaailities or to obtain or retain third-party mdacturing on acceptable terms, we may no
be able to conduct certain future pre-clinical atwical testing or to supply commercial quantit@our products.

We manufacture supplies in connection with preicdihor clinical studies conducted by us or ouetisees. Our licensees have the
exclusive rights to manufacture commercial quagitf products, once approved for marketing. Odraur licensees’ reliance on third-party
manufacturers entails risks, including:

» failure of third parties to comply with cGMP andhet applicable U.S. and foreign regulations anenigploy adequate quality
assurance practice

» inability to obtain the materials necessary to pia product or to formulate the active pharmacaungredient on commercially
reasonable terms, if at a

» supply disruption, deterioration in product qualitybreach of a manufacturing or license agreeigiiie third party because of
factors beyond our or our licens’ control;

« termination or no-renewal of a manufacturing or licensing agreematit a/third party at a time that is costly or diffit; and
« inability to identify or qualify an alternative mafacturer in a timely manner, even if contractuaiyrmitted to do sc

Problems associated with international business igi®ns could affect our ability to manufacture anskll our products. If we encounte
such problems, our costs could increase and ouralepment of products could be delayzt

We currently maintain offices and research and ldgwveent facilities in the U.S. and the U.K., and goal is to develop products for s
by us and our licensees in most major world heatthenarkets. Manufacturing of pharmaceutical presitexuires us or our licensees to
comply with regulations regarding safety and gqyaditd
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to obtain country and jurisdiction-specific regolgt approvals and clearances. We or our licensegsnot be able to comply with such
regulations or to obtain or maintain needed regwaapprovals and clearances or may be requir@ttto significant costs in doing so. In
addition, our operations and future revenues masulbgect to a number of risks associated with gr&iommerce, including the following:

» staffing and managing foreign operatio

» political and economic instabilit

» foreign currency exchange fluctuatiol

» foreign tax laws, tariffs and freight rates andrges;

» timing and availability of export license

» inadequate protection of intellectual property t&gim some countries; a
« obtaining required government approvi

Legislative or regulatory changes may adverselyeaffour business, operations and financial resu

Our industry is highly regulated and new laws, tagons and judicial decisions, and new interpietet of existing laws, regulations and
judicial decisions, may adversely affect our busin@perations and financial resu

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act@f@, as amended by the Health Care and EducatioonRiiation Act of 2010
(PPACA) is intended to expand U.S. healthcare @myeprimarily through the imposition of health iruce mandates on employers and
individuals and expansion of the Medicaid progr&veral provisions of the PPACA could significamgluce payments from Medicare and
Medicaid for our products and any product candslathich obtain approval over the next 10 years. FBACA's effects cannot be fully
known until its provisions are implemented, and @enters for Medicare & Medicaid Services, and ofederal and state agencies, issue
applicable regulations or guidance. Proposed Uafe siealthcare reforms, and any foreign healthedoems, also could alter the availability,
methods and rates of reimbursements from the govemhand other third-party payors for our prodaetd any product candidates which
obtain approval, and could adversely affect ouinmss strategy, operations and financial results.

The FDAAA granted the FDA enhanced authority owedpicts already approved for sale, including autjdo require post-marketing
studies and clinical trials, labeling changes basedew safety information and compliance with estaluations and mitigation strategies
approved by the FDA. The FDA's exercise of thisatigkly new authority could result in delays andreased costs during product
development, clinical trials and regulatory reviemd approval, increased costs following regulatgproval to assure compliance with new
post-approval regulatory requirements, and poterggdrictions on the sale or distribution of apgrd products following regulatory approval.

Changes in the regulatory approval policy duringdlevelopment period, changes in or the enactnfedditional regulations or statute
or changes in regulatory review for each submittextiuct application may cause delays in the appravaejection of an application. For
example, the July 9, 2012 reauthorization of th&JPR extended by two months the period in whichFD&A is expected to review and
approve certain NDAs. Although the FDA has receathted that it expects to meet PDUFA’s updatechgingoals, it has in the past provided
its managers discretion to miss them due to heiglitegency workload or understaffing in the revilivisions. Accordingly, it remains
unclear whether and to what extent the FDA wille@hto PDUFA timing goals in the future, which abdklay approval and
commercialization of our product candidates.
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RISKS RELATED TO OUR COMMON STOCK
The price of our common stock may be volatile.

The price of our common stock (including commorcktepresented by CHESS Depositary Interests (§iay be affected by
developments directly affecting our business as$ agby developments out of our control or not #jeto us. The price of our common stock
dropped significantly when the FDA issued its 2@RL with respect to ILUVIEN for DME. The biotechmgy sector, in particular, and the
stock market generally, are vulnerable to abruphgles in investor sentiment. Prices of securitiesteading volume of companies in the
biotechnology industry, including ours, can swimgrdatically in ways unrelated to, or that bearspdiportionate relationship to, our
performance. The price of our common stock (andsgBhd their trading volumes may fluctuate based namber of factors including, but
not limited to:

« clinical trials and their results and other prodaietl technological developments and innovati

» FDA and other domestic and international governadergulatory actions, receipt and timing of appievof our product
candidates, and any denials and withdrawal of afgbs¢

« competitive factors, including the commercializatimf new products in our markets by our competit
» advancements with respect to treatment of the sesergeted by our product candida

» developments relating to and actions by our collatiee partners, including execution, amendmenttanaination of agreements,
achievement of milestones and receipt of paymi

» the success of our collaborative partners in margetny approved products and the amount and timimgayments to u¢
» availability and cost of capital and our financald operating result

» actions with respect to pricing, reimbursement emekerage, and changes in reimbursement policiesher practices relating to our
products or the pharmaceutical industry gener

* meeting, exceeding or failing to meet analystshoestors’ expectations, and changes in evaluatiosrecommendations by
securities analyst:

* economic, industry and market conditions, changéseads; anc
» other factors unrelated to us or the biotechnolagystry.

In addition, low trading volume in our common stamkour CDIs may increase their price volatilityolders of our common stock and
CDIs may not be able to liquidate their positiohthe desired time or price. Finally, we will neteccontinue to meet the listing requirement
the NASDAQ Global Market, including the minimum skoprice, and the Australian Securities ExchanggXfor our stock and CDls to
continue to be traded on those exchanges, respbctiv

If the holders of our outstanding warrants and stooptions exercise their warrants and options, owslgp of our common stock holdel
may be diluted, and our stock price may decline.

As of August 31, 2013, we had outstanding warrantsoptions to acquire approximately 5.1 millioargs of our common stock, or
approximately 16.1% of our shares on a fully didlbasis. The issuance of shares of our common sipok exercise of these warrants and
stock options could result in dilution to the irgsts of other holders of our common stock and cadidrsely affect our stock price. The
overhang of outstanding warrants and options magraely affect our stock price.
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We do not currently intend to pay dividends on aeommon stock, and any return to investors is exjgecto come, if at all, only from
potential increases in the price of our common sto

At the present time, we intend to use availablel$uto finance our operations. Accordingly, whilg/pa&nt of dividends rests within the
discretion of our board of directors, no cash divids on our common shares have been declareddbyais and we have no intention of
paying any such dividends in the foreseeable future

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
We do not own any real property. We lease the folig:

* 3,940 square feet of laboratory space, 1,582 sdaat®f clean room space and 7,890 square fezftioé space in Watertown,
Massachusetts under a lease agreement that expikpsil 2014;

* 1,665 square feet of office space and 1,250 sdeat®f laboratory space in Malvern, United Kingdander a lease agreement tha
expires in August 2016, subject to our right tortirate in August 2014 upon six months advance evrittotice; ani

» 526 square feet of laboratory space in MalverntééhKingdom under a lease agreement that expirdsria 2015, subject to our
right at any time to terminate upon six months adeawritten notice

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
None.

ITEM 4.  MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information, Holders and Dividends

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global kéaunder the trading symbol “PSDV”. The followitable sets forth the high
and low prices per share of our common stock asrteg on the NASDAQ Global Market for the perioddicated:

High Low

Fiscal year ended June 30, 20

First Quartel $3.5C $1.4¢

Second Quarte 1.6¢ 1.17

Third Quartel 2.5¢ 1.1¢

Fourth Quarte 4.0 2.0¢
Fiscal year ended June 30, 20

First Quartel $5.2: $4.0C

Second Quarte 4.81 1.0z

Third Quartel 2.8t 1.11

Fourth Quarte 2.8( 1.4

On September 23, 2013, the last reported sale pfioar common stock on the NASDAQ Global Markesv§.03. As of that date, we
had approximately 26 holders of record of our commsimck and, according to our estimates, approxiy&, 750 beneficial owners of our
common stock. In addition, as of that date, thezeavapproximately 2,250 beneficial owners of oul<CD

We have never paid cash dividends, and we do nimiate paying cash dividends in the foreseealtieré.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information about gexurities authorized for issuance under the Cogipaguity compensation plans as
of June 30, 2013:

Number of securities
Number of securities

to be issued upon
exercise of
outstanding options

warrants and rights

Plan category @
Equity Compensation plans approved by security

holders 3,554,54!
Equity Compensation plans not approved by security

holders —
Total 3,554,54!

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options

warrants and rights

- ®
$ 2.92
$ 2.92

remaining available
for future issuance

under equity

compensation plans
(excluding securities
reflected in Column a;

©

1,056,45!

1,056,45!

On the first day of each fiscal year until Juh20,17, the number of shares reserved for issuarer tihe Companyg’ 2008 Incentive Ple
will be increased by the least of (i) 750,000 skafi#) 4% of the then outstanding shares of commstogk; and (iii) any such lesser number of
shares as is determined by the Compensation Coesntftthe Board of Directors. On July 1, 2013,rtbheber of shares issuable under the

2008 Incentive Plan was increased by 750,000 shares
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Issuer Repurchases of Equity Securities
None.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected historical financial data set fortloweas of June 30, 2013, 2012, 2011, 2010 and 20d%or each of the years then ended
have been derived from our audited consolidatezhfifal statements, of which the financial statemastof June 30, 2013 and 2012 and fo
years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are attkidewhere in this Annual Report on Forr-K.

The information set forth below should be readanjanction with Item 7, “Management’s Discussiom analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations”, and the &addftonsolidated financial statements, and the rib&rsto, and other financial information
included elsewhere herein. Our historical finaniédrmation may not be indicative of our futuresuéis of operations or financial position.

Year Ended June 30
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands except per share date

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:

Revenues
Collaborative research and development $ 78C $ 2,08( $ 3,617 $22,57( $12,00:
Royalty income 1,36 1,44¢ 1,35: 482 16C
Total revenue: 2,14 3,52¢ 4,96¢ 23,05 12,16:
Operating expense
Research and developmt 7,00¢ 7,03¢ 6,86¢ 6,994 8,001
General and administrati 7,16¢ 6,86¢ 8,10 6,96¢ 8,791
Impairment of intangible assets | — 14,83( — — —
Total operating expens 14,17 28,73. 14,96¢ 13,96 16,79¢
Operating (loss) incom (12,03) (25,21)) (10,0079) 9,091 (4,63¢€)
Other income (expense
Change in fair value of derivativi — 17C 1,14C (339 95¢
Interest incomt 16 38 30 27 162
Other (expense) income, r (2) D) (13 (©)] 53
Total other income (expens 14 207 1,155 (315 1,17¢
(Loss) income before income tax (12,017 (25,00¢) (8,84¢) 8,77¢ (3,467)
Income tax benefit (expens 117 16¢ 21€ (23) 951
Net (loss) incomi $(11,900  $(24,83) $ (8,62f $ 8,75 $(2,51))
Net (loss) income per shal
Basic $ (059 $ (119 $ (049 $ 0.4¢ $ (0.19
Diluted $ (059 $ (119 $ (04H $ 0.4¢ $ (0.19
Weighted average common shares outstani
Basic 23,044 20,79: 19,48¢ 18,40¢ 18,26
Diluted 23,04« 20,79: 19,48¢ 18,89: 18,26
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As of June 30.
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivale $ 6,89¢ $ 4,62¢ $12,91: $15,51¢ $ 6,89¢
Marketable securitie 3,37¢ 9,94¢ 11,21¢ 2,051 —

Total asset 16,24¢ 20,597 47,11 43,01« 37,10
Total deferred reven—current and lon-term 5,98¢ 5,95¢ 7,847 6,89¢ 10,53¢
Total stockholder equity 7,70( 13,63¢ 37,43: 33,04 23,54

(1) Amounts recognized include $368,000 in fis@12, $754,000 in fiscal 2012 and $3.3 million schl 2011 from our Restated Pfizer
Agreement; $67,000 in fiscal 2013, $111,000 indiz912, $192,000 in fiscal 2011, $22.3 milliorfistal 2010 and $11.8 million in
fiscal 2009 from our collaboration agreement witimfera; and $1.1 million in fiscal 2012 in connectiwith the termination of our field-
of-use license agreement with Intrinsiq. See NotetBeaccompanying consolidated financial statemfentadditional information

(2) At December 31, 2011, we recorded a $14.8 anilimpairment charge related to our BioSilicon &ndasert intangible assets as
discussed in Notes 4 and 7 to the accompanyingotidated financial statemen
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of financiahdition and results of operations should be readonjunction with our audited
consolidated financial statements and related nbeginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report onrrdi0-K. This discussion contains
forward-looking statements, based on current expectatimasrelated to future events and our future finahpierformance, that involve risks
and uncertainties. Our actual results may diffgmgiicantly from those anticipated or implied irete forwardooking statements as a resull
many important factors, including, but not limitex] those set forth under Item 1A, “Risk Factoraiid elsewhere in this report.

Overview

We develop tiny, sustained-release products dedigmdeliver drugs and biologics at a controlled ateady rate for weeks, months or
years. Utilizing our core technology platforms, Bsert™ and BioSilicon™, we are focused on treatroéohronic diseases of the back of
eye and are also exploring applications outsideét@pmology. We have developed three of the foutadnsd-release products for treatment of
retinal diseases currently approved in the U.&wppean Union (EU), and our lead product candidaten a Phase 11l clinical trial in June
2013. Our strategy includes developing productepeesdently while continuing to leverage our techgglplatforms through collaboration a
license agreements.

ILUVIEN ®, our most recently approved product, is an injgletasustained-release micro-insert that providestment of vision
impairment associated with chronic diabetic macatiema (DME) considered insufficiently responsivavailable therapies over a period of
up to three years. ILUVIEN is licensed to and dojdAlimera Sciences, Inc. (Alimera), and we arétled to a share of the net profits, as
defined, from Alimera’s sales of ILUVIEN for DME.l#nera commenced the commercial launch of ILUVIEN DME in the U.K. and
Germany in the second quarter of 2013 and expedsaihch in France in the first quarter of 2014e Titernational Diabetes Federation has
estimated that approximately 19.0 million peopleéhdiabetes in the seven EU countries where ILUVHaN received or been recommended
for marketing authorization, of which Alimera hagtimated that approximately 1.1 million people suffom vision loss associated with DME.
Alimera is also seeking marketing approval for ILEX for DME in the U.S. In the second quarter ofl2pAlimera received a new
Prescription Drug User Fee Act (PDUFA) goal dat®ofober 17, 2013 after resubmitting its New DrygphAcation (NDA) for ILUVIEN for
DME. The resubmission responded to a second CoenBlesponse Letter (CRL) received from the U.S. FowtiDrug Administration (FDA)
in November 2011.

Medidur™, our lead development product, commenced thedfretir two planned Phase 1l clinical trials fbiettreatment of chronic
non-infectious uveitis affecting the posterior segtnof the eye (posterior uveitis) in June 2013dMer uses the same Durasert micro-insert
used in ILUVIEN and delivers a lower dose of thmealrug as our FDA-approved Retisert for postenaitis, which is licensed to
Bausch & Lomb. We are developing Medidur indepetigien

We are also developing a bioerodible, injectablerainsert delivering latanoprost (the Latanopfistduct) to treat glaucoma and oculal
hypertension. Under an amended collaboration agraerRfizer has an option, under certain circuntganto license the development and
commercialization of the Latanoprost Product worttiy

We are engaged in pre-clinical research with resjeelesoth our BioSilicon and Durasert technologgtfiirms. The primary focus of our
BioSilicon technology research is the sustained/epf of peptides, proteins, antibodies and othegé biologic molecules using our
Tethadur™ technology in both ophthalmic and nontbalmic applications. Our research program alstudes the use of Durasert technology
in orthopedic applications and for systemic deljef therapeutic agents.
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Our FDA-approvedRetisertprovides sustained release treatment of postevigitisi for approximately two and a half years antidensec
to and sold by Bausch & Lomb.

Summary of Critical Accounting Policies and Estimaes

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caaditind results of operations is based upon ousaatated financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with United Sgatesrally accepted accounting principles, or GSAP. The preparation of these finant
statements requires that we make certain estimatigments and assumptions that affect the repamsolints of assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reponealats of revenues and expenses during the regagréiriods. We base our estimates on
historical experience, anticipated results anddseand various other factors believed to be reddenmder the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis for making judgments aboutdaeying values of assets and liabilities thatreoereadily available from other sources.
their nature, these estimates, judgments and asgums@re subject to an inherent degree of uncegytaind management evaluates them on ar
ongoing basis for changes in facts and circumstar€leanges in estimates are recorded in the pirietich they become known. Actual
results may differ from our estimates under différ@ssumptions or conditions.

While our significant accounting policies are mériy described in Note 2 to the accompanying cdidated financial statements, we
believe that the following accounting policies ariical to understanding the judgments and eseésased in the preparation of our financial
statements. It is important that the discussioouwfoperating results that follows be read in cogfion with the critical accounting policies
discussed below.

Revenue Recognition

Our business strategy includes entering into coliafive license and development agreements fodekrelopment and commercializati
of product candidates utilizing our technology sys$. The terms of these arrangements typicallydechultiple deliverables by us (for
example, granting of license rights, providing sesl and development services and manufacturiegrofal materials, participating on joint
research committees) in exchange for consider&iais of some combination of non-refundable licdees, funding of research and
development activities, payments based upon acfmientof clinical development, regulatory and sahégstones and royalties in the form ¢
designated percentage of product sales or profits.

Revenue arrangements with multiple deliverablesiasieed into separate units of accounting if dertaiteria are met, including whett
the delivered element has stand-alone value toub®mer and based on the selling price of theeielbles. When deliverables are separable
consideration received is allocated to the sepangits of accounting based on the relative seltirige of the elements and the appropriate
revenue recognition principles are applied to eatdh

The assessment of multiple deliverable arrangemenqtsres judgment in order to determine the appatgunits of accounting, the
estimated selling price of each unit of accountany] the points in time that, or periods over whrelvenue should be recognized.

For the year ended June 30, 2013, we reported @38@f collaborative research and development reweRevenue is recognized when
there is persuasive evidence that an arrangemests edelivery has occurred, the price is fixed daterminable and collection is reasonably
assured.

We prospectively adopted the provisions of ASU R@09-13, Revenue Recognition (Topic 60@)ltiple-Deliverable Revenue
Arrangement(*ASU 2009-13") for new and materially modified anmgements originating on or after July 1, 2010. A2%09-13 requires a
vendor to allocate revenue to each unit of accagriti arrangements involving multiple deliverabléshanges the level of evidence of
standalone selling price required to separate elebles by allowing a vendor to make its best egtnof the standalone selling price of
deliverables when vendor-specific objective evideacthird-party evidence of selling price is neaitable.
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As discussed further in Note 3 to our consolidditeahcial statements, adoption of this accountir@npuncement in fiscal 2011 resulted
in the recognition of revenue in connection witlh 2007 Collaborative Research and License AgreemihtPfizer that became subject to the
new accounting pronouncement after a material moadibn to the agreement occurred. As a resulhefadoption of ASU 2009-13, deferred
revenues associated with this Pfizer agreementwitlecognized as revenues earlier than would wibehave occurred.

We concluded that our deliverables under the Restafizer Agreement are conducting the researctdandlopment program for the
Latanoprost Product through completion of Phagthd “R&D program”)and participation on a Joint Steering CommitteeC}J8Ve treat thes
as a single deliverable, having concluded that8@ does not have standalone value separate foR&D program. We concluded that the
Pfizer exercise option for the worldwide exclusiieense is not a deliverable of the arrangemers, tdit being a substantive option and not
being priced at a significant and incremental disito

The total arrangement consideration of the Resfafizér Agreement totaled $10.05 million, which sisted of the $7.75 million of
deferred revenue on our balance sheet at the ieffedate plus the $2.3 million upfront payment. Tiféerence between the total arrangement
consideration and the estimated selling price efdbmbined deliverables, or $3.3 million, was retped as collaborative research and
development revenue in the quarter ended Juneddq, 2he period of the modification. The remainibaance is being recognized as revenue
using the proportional performance method overeitemated period of our performance obligationseuride R&D program.

To determine the estimated selling price of the lnioed deliverable, we applied an estimated ma@iout cost projections for the
combined deliverable. A change in the estimatedgmanr our cost projections would have directly anfed the amount of revenue recognizec
during fiscal 2011. An increase of 10% in our estied selling price of the combined deliverables iddave reduced revenue recognized in
fiscal 2011 by $670,000 and would have increasedhthount of deferred revenue recognized in eaéibazl 2012 and fiscal 2013 by 10%, or
$75,000 and $37,000, respectively. Applicationhef proportional performance method in any fiscaigoewould result in an increase or
decrease in revenue recognized to the extenttibatggregate projected costs to conduct the R&Drpm decreases or increases, respectivel
compared to the previous period.

Valuation of Intangible Assets

At December 31, 2011, we recorded a $11.7 milliopairment of our BioSilicon intangible and a $3.ilion impairment of our
Durasert intangible. The combination of the 2011L.GRd the subsequent significant decline in the @amy’s market capitalization were
determined to be impairment indicators of the Camyfafinite-lived intangible assets. To assessréo@verability of the these assets (which
had a carrying value of $19.4 million at Decembkr2011), we used both market-based and incomedhadeation methodologies, and
allocated the resulting fair value of the combingdngible assets to the individual assets basadilues determined under the income-based
approach.

We amortize our intangible assets using the sttdigh method over their estimated economic liwelsich currently extend through
calendar year 2017 and is expected to result hraege to operations of approximately $760,000 paryWe believe that the carrying value of
our intangible assets will be recouped primarilptigh expected net cash flows from our existinfutre collaboration agreements or througt
our own product development and commercialization.

We will continue to review our intangible assetsifopairment whenever events or changes in busiciessmstances indicate that the
asset carrying values may not be fully recoverablihat the useful lives of assets are no longprapiate. Factors that could trigger an
impairment review include the following:

» Change relative to historical or projected futupemting results
* Modification or termination of our existing collatadion agreement:
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» Factors affecting the development of productsaitij the intangible asse
» Changes in the expected use of the intangible asséhe strategy for the overall business,

* Industry or economic trends and developme

If an impairment trigger is identified, we determirecoverability of an intangible asset by compgaprojected undiscounted net cash
flows to be generated by the asset to its carryaige. If the carrying value is not recoverablejrapairment charge is recorded equal to the
excess of the asset’s carrying value over itsviaine, and the carrying value is adjusted. Estich&teure undiscounted cash flows, which relate
to existing contractual agreements as well as prejecash flows from future research and developrataboration agreements utilizing the
underlying technology systems, require managemardgment regarding future events and probabilittetual results could vary from these
estimates. Future adverse changes or other unéableefactors could result in an impairment chavijle respect to some or all of the carrying
value of our intangible assets. Such an impairmbatge could materially impact future results ofi@bions and financial position in the
reporting period identified.

A significant change in the estimation of the potgel undiscounted net cash flows for the produstsproduct candidates utilizing the
Durasert or BioSilicon technology systems, amomgeiothings, could result in the further impairmehthe carrying value of the respective
assets.

Results of Operations
Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Year ended June 30 Change
2013 2012 Amounts %
(In thousands except percentage:
Revenue! $ 2,14 $ 3,52¢ $ (1,387%) (39%
Operating expense
Research and developmt 7,00t 7,03¢ (34) (0%
General and administrati 7,16¢ 6,86¢ 301 4%
Impairment of intangible asse — 14,83( (14,830 (100%
Total operating expens 14,17« 28,73. (14,567) (5%
Operating los! (12,03) (25,21)) 13,18( 52%
Other income (expense
Change in fair value of derivativi — 17C (270) (200%
Interest incom 16 38 (22 (58)%
Other expense, n 2 D) D) (100%
Total other incomi 14 207 (199 (93)%
Loss before income taxi (12,017 (25,00¢) 12,981 52%
Income tax benefi 117 16¢ (52 (3D)%
Net loss $(11,900 $(24,83%) $ 12,93t 52%
Revenue:

We recognized total revenue of $2.1 million foc&s2013 as compared to $3.5 million for fiscal 201

Collaborative research and development revenuéngeicto $780,000 in fiscal 2013, a 63% decreagsa 2.1 million in fiscal 2012,
primarily due to non-recurring revenue of $1.1 millin fiscal 2012, which was recognized upon #renination of a field-of-use license.
Approximately half of our collaborative researctian

38



Table of Contents

development revenue was recognition of deferredmeg from collaboration agreements in fiscal 20d8ared to substantially all in the pr
year. $738,000 of the remaining deferred revenisnba of $6.0 million at June 30, 2013 is expettele recognized as revenue during fi
2014.

Our Retisert royalty income in fiscal 2013 increchte $1.4 million, a 3.6% increase over the prieary Substantially all of the royalty
income in both years was derived from sales ofdedtby Bausch & Lomb. During fiscal 2013, Bauschdmnb discontinued sales of Vitrasi
We do not expect Retisert royalty income to inceegignificantly in the future, and it may decline.

Research and Developme

Research and development totaled $7.0 million @hed fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012. Periodic amatian of intangible assets decreasec
by $1.3 million in fiscal 2013 compared to fisc812, which resulted from a $14.8 million intangibkeset impairment write-down at
December 31, 2011. This decrease was substartfédigt in fiscal 2013 by approximately $700,000rofial costs incurred for the first of two
planned pivotal Phase Il clinical trials of Medidor posterior uveitis, which commenced in thejgeraended June 30, 2013, and an
approximate $600,000 increase in personnel cosiishveonsisted primarily of additional headcound &@ash incentive compensation accruals
We expect to significantly increase our researahdevelopment expense in fiscal 2014 in connedtiitin patient enrollment for the Phase |l
clinical trial of Medidur.

General and Administrative

General and administrative costs increased by $801por 4%, to $7.2 million for fiscal 2013 from.$6nillion for fiscal 2012, primarily
attributable to $630,000 of cash incentive compmsaccruals, which compared to zero in the pyemar. This was partially offset by an
approximate $430,000 decrease in professional fees.

Other Income

Other income decreased by $193,000, or 93%, td0®04pr fiscal 2013 from $207,000 for fiscal 200kher income for fiscal 2012
consisted primarily of the change in fair valuedefivatives of $170,000. This income, which reduttedderivative liability balance to zero,
was determined using the Black-Scholes valuatiodeh@nd resulted from the July 2012 expiratiothefremaining warrants denominated in
Australian dollars (A$), which were recorded as\g#ive liabilities at issuance and revalued atssgfuent period reporting dates. Interest
income, net, decreased by $23,000 from fiscal 20XBcal 2013 as a result of lower levels of méakée securities investments and further
decreases in yields for investment grade corpdraels and commercial paper of short maturities.

Income Tax Benefil

Income tax benefit, which consisted of foreign eesh and development tax credits, decreased bY@820r 31%, to $117,000 in fiscal
2013 from $169,000 in fiscal 2012, primarily attribible to the impact of third party funding of eéntqualified research and development
costs.
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Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

Year ended June 30 Change
2012 2011 Amounts %
(In thousands except percentage:
Revenue: $ 3,52¢ $ 4,96f $ (1,439 (29)%
Operating expense
Research and developmt 7,03¢ 6,86¢ 17t 3%
General and administrati\ 6,86¢ 8,10¢ (1,236 (15)%
Impairment of intangible asse 14,83( — 14,83( ne
Total operating expens 28,73% 14,96¢ 13,76¢ 92%
Operating los! (25,217) (10,007 (15,209 (152)%
Other income (expense
Change in fair value of derivativi 17C 1,14(C (970 (85)%
Interest incomt 38 30 8 27%
Other expense, n (D) (13) 12 92%
Total other incomi 207 1,155 (950 (82)%
Loss before income tax (25,009 (8,84¢) (16,15¢) (189%
Income tax benefi 16¢ 21¢ (49 (22)%
Net loss $(24,83%) $ (8,62¢) $(16,207) (188)%
Revenue

We recognized total revenue of $3.5 million focéis2012 as compared to $5.0 million for fiscal 20The decrease in revenue was
primarily due to a $1.5 million decrease in collediive research and development revenue, partéfibet by a $93,000 increase in royalty
income.

We restated the Pfizer Agreement in fiscal 2014 wiich we received $2.3 million in upfront congidigon, resulting in an aggregate
$10.0 million balance of deferred revenue assodiafith that agreement. In fiscal 2011, we recognhi®®.3 million of deferred revenue from
that agreement, and the remainder is being recedrag revenue using the proportional performandbodever the estimated period of our
performance obligations under the Latanoprost Rrodisearch program.

Collaborative research and development revenuisial 2012 of $2.1 million consisted primarily @éferred revenue recognition of
$754,000 related to the Restated Pfizer Agreenteh®4a.1 million resulting from the termination ofield-of-use license. This compares to
$3.6 million of collaborative research and develephrevenue for fiscal 2011, which was predomineasisociated with the Restated Pfizer
Agreement.

Substantially all of our royalty income in fiscad22 and fiscal 2011 was from sales of Retisert. Ot royalty income increased by
$92,000, or 6.8%, in fiscal 2012 compared to fi&1, and approximated $1.4 million in each y&am remaining royalty income was from
Vitrasert sales.

Research and Developme

Research and development increased by $175,08%0to $7.0 million for fiscal 2012 from $6.9 mdh for fiscal 2011. This increase
was primarily attributable to increased personwstg and the absence in fiscal 2012 of a fedeeaafieutic discovery grant received in fiscal
2011, substantially offset by decreased amortinatitintangible assets in fiscal 2012 resultingrfra $14.8 million intangible asset impairm
write-down at December 31, 2011.
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General and Administrative

General and administrative costs decreased byrfillign, or 15%, to $6.9 million for fiscal 2012dm $8.1 million for fiscal 2011,
primarily attributable to decreased stock-basedpmmmsation (including performance stock option fitufes), professional fees and the absenc
in fiscal 2012 of cash incentive compensation, paynof which was subject to future conditions.

Change in Fair Value of Derivatives

Change in fair value of derivatives representediime of $170,000 for fiscal 2012 compared to incai®1.1 million for fiscal 2011.
Warrants denominated in A$ were recorded as dérevéiibilities, subject to revaluation at subsetfueporting dates. Fiscal 2011 income
from the change in fair value of derivatives wasdaminantly due to the expiration of approximat&y million, or 95%, of the A$-
denominated warrants during that year. The derxiediabilities balance was reduced to zero duriagal 2012 in connection with the July 2(
expiration of our last remaining A$-denominated naats, with the result that we will not recognineame or loss relating to the change in the
fair value of derivatives from these warrants ia thture.

Income Tax Benefi

Income tax benefit decreased by $49,000, or 22%169,000 in fiscal 2012 from $218,000 in fiscal 20primarily attributable to the
absence in fiscal 2012 of a net reduction of defétax liabilities and federal alternative minimts® expense in fiscal 2011, partially offset by
higher foreign research and development tax credits

Inflation and Seasonality

Our management believes inflation has not had ama&tmpact on our operations or financial coraditand that our operations are not
currently subject to seasonal influences.

Recently Adopted and Recently Issued Accounting Prmuncements

New accounting pronouncements are issued peridglioaithe Financial Accounting Standards Board (3B%) and are adopted by us as
of the specified effective dates. Unless otherwliselosed below, we believe that the impact of ngdssued and adopted pronouncements
will not have a material impact on our financiakiiimn, results of operations and cash flows ondbapply to our operations.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 201Cdmprehensive Income (Topic 220) — Presentatid@oofiprehensive Incomahich provide:
new guidance on the presentation of comprehensoa@nie. This guidance requires a company to presgnponents of net income (loss) and
other comprehensive income in one continuous s&téor in two separate, but consecutive, statem&htye are no changes to the
components that are recognized in net income (lmss)her comprehensive income under current GARR. Company adopted this standard
for the quarter ended September 30, 2012 and lessmted the required information in one continugtatement of operations and
comprehensive loss on a comparative basis. Othardatchange in presentation, the adoption of thidagice did not have a material impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

During fiscal 2011 through fiscal 2013, we finan@ad operations primarily from registered diredieohgs of our equity securities in
January 2011 and August 2012, as well as operatisg flows from license fees and research and oleweint funding from collaborations. At
June 30, 2013, our principal source of liquiditysisted of cash, cash equivalents and marketableises totaling $10.3 million. In July 201
we
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enhanced our cash resources through the saleunderwritten public offering, of 3,494,550 shanésommon stock for net proceeds of $9.9
million. Our cash equivalents are invested in tosittnal money market funds, and our marketablemstées are invested in investment-grade
corporate debt and commercial paper with maturéteine 30, 2013 ranging from one to seven months.

With the exception of net income in fiscal 2010utéag from a non-recurring event, we have incuropérating losses since inception
and, at June 30, 2013, we had a total accumulageitchf $263.7 million. We do not currently hasay assured sources of revenue and we
generally expect negative cash flows from operatimma quarterly basis unless and until such tsneereceive sufficient revenues from
ILUVIEN for DME or one or more of our other produzandidates achieve regulatory approval and pravedeufficient revenues. We believe
that our capital resources of $10.3 million at J88e2013, together with the $9.9 million of nedbgeeds from our July 2013 share offering,
expected Retisert royalty income and other expecdstl inflows under existing collaboration and eatibn agreements will enable us to fund
our operations as currently planned through calepelar 2014. This includes expected costs throhghdate of Phase 1l clinical trials of
Medidur for posterior uveitis, but does not includey potential milestone or net profit receipts @emithe Alimera collaboration agreement. Our
capital resources would be enhanced if Alimera ssgftilly commercializes ILUVIEN for DME in the EUha if ILUVIEN for DME were
approved and successfully commercialized in the,@8ough even so, the amount and timing of argh seceipts is uncertain. Accordingly,
we expect to need additional resources to funcptarmed Phase Il trials for Medidur for postetimeitis, as well as other research and
development and operations. Whether we will requiralesire, to raise additional capital will b8uenced by many factors, including, but not
limited to:

* whether, when and to what extent we receive rev@froen Alimera with respect to ILUVIEN for DME, ihading from
commercialization in the EU or upon any approvat@mmercialization in the U.S

» the timing and cost of development of Medidur fosferior uveitis
» whether and when we initiate Phase Il clinicall$rfar the Latanoprost Product and Pfizer exerdisesption;

* whether and the extent to which we internally funten we initiate, and how we conduct product dgwelent and programs,
including with respect to BioSilicon and Tethadppbcations;

» whether and when we are able to enter into stragangements for products and the nature of tansagement:

» timely and successful development, regulatory apgdrand commercialization of our products and pomaandidates

» the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecgtimaintaining, defending and enforcing any patéaitns; anc

» changes in our operating plan, resulting in inaesaw decreases in our need for cag

Absent adequate levels of funding from existing patential future collaboration or other agreements/or financing transactions,

management currently believes that our cash poditayond calendar year 2014 depends significamtlgassible revenues from the successfu
commercialization by Alimera of ILUVIEN for DME ithe EU and, if approved by the FDA, in the U.S. léwer, there is no assurance thai
FDA or other additional regulatory authorities vépprove ILUVIEN for DME, that it will achieve magkacceptance in any market or that we

will receive significant, if any, revenues from IMIEN for DME. Exercise by Pfizer of its option ftine Latanoprost Product would also
enhance our cash position, although there is noraisse when the option will become exercisabld Bfizer will exercise it.

If we determine that it is desirable or necessamaise additional capital in the future, we do kdw if it will be available when needed
or on terms favorable to us or our stockholder® Jtate of the economy and the financial and credikets at the time we seek additional
financing may make it more difficult and more
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expensive to obtain. If available, additional egtihancing may be dilutive to stockholders, dabahcing may involve restrictive covenants ot
other unfavorable terms and potential dilutive gguand funding through collaboration agreementg beon unfavorable terms, including
requiring us to relinquish rights to certain of ¢echnologies or products. If adequate financingoisavailable if and when needed, we may be
required to delay, reduce the scope of or eliminasearch or development programs, postpone oettrepursuit of product candidates,
including pre-clinical and clinical trials and ndasiness opportunities, reduce staff and operatists or otherwise significantly curtail our
operations to reduce our cash requirements andexter capital.

Our consolidated statements of historical cashdlave summarized as follows:

Year Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Net loss: $(11,900) $(24,83%) $(8,62¢)
Changes in operating assets and liabili 692 (2,715 1,211
Other adjustments to reconcile net loss to cashsfivom operating activitie 2,46: 18,54¢ 4,24

Cash flows used in operating activit $ (8,745 $ (9,007 $(3,170

Cash flows provided by (used in) investing actes $ 6,35¢ $ 60€ $(9,49¢)

Cash flows provided by financing activiti $ 4,66¢ $ 114 $10,06(

Sources and uses of operating cash flows for taesyended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are sunechaszollows:

Year Ended June 30
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Operating cash inflow:s

License and collaboration agreeme $ 854 $ 187 $ 4,66
Royalty income 1,471 1,27 1,36(
Foreign R&D tax credit 152 93 142
Federal R&D grant — — 20¢
Investment interest received, 1 21F 37z 12¢
2,69¢ 1,92¢ 6,504

Operating cash outflow:
Personnel cos! (4,539 (4,90€) (3,92¢)
Professional fee (2,729 (3,330 (3,06
Clinical development and thi-party R&D (2,159 (690 (84¢)
All other operating cash outflows, r (2,027 (2,009 (1,839
(11,449 (10,930 (9,679
Cash flows used in operating activit $ (8,749 $ (9,00]) $(3,170)

Operating cash inflows for each year consisted guilgnof payments received pursuant to license @ildboration agreements. As a
percentage of total license and collaboration dafébws, amounts attributable to Pfizer represer®2@®% in fiscal 2011, amounts attributable
to Alimera represented 8.4% in fiscal 2013, 57.2%sdcal 2012 and 5.3% in fiscal 2011, amountshaitable to Enigma represented 11.7% in
fiscal 2013 and amounts attributable to varioubnietogy evaluation agreements represented 73.2%caml 2013 and 26.7% in fiscal 2012.
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Operating cash outflows increased by $513,000, B¥4from fiscal 2012 to fiscal 2013, primarily asesult of $1.6 million of payments
with respect to the first Phase llI trial of Medidar posterior uveitis, partially offset by thessmce in fiscal 2013 of approximately $600,000
of fiscal 2011 cash incentive compensation paiisital 2012 and an approximate $600,000 decreasmfrssional fees. Operating cash
outflows increased by $1.3 million, or 13.0%, fréistal 2011 to fiscal 2012, primarily as a resilirereased personnel costs and professione
fees.

Cash flows from investing activities were primalitributable to maturities and sales of marketableurities, net of purchases, of $6.4
million for fiscal 2013 and $1.0 million for fisc2012, and to purchases of marketable securitetsyfrmaturities, totaling $9.4 million for
fiscal 2011. Purchases of property and equipmealett $68,000 in fiscal 2013, $405,000 in fiscal2@nd $133,000 in fiscal 2011.

Cash flows from financing activities in fiscal 20@@re attributable to $5.4 million of gross proceémm the August 2012 registered
direct offering of shares and warrants, net of apipnately $700,000 of share issuance costs. Néticdlews from financing activities in fiscal
2011 were predominantly attributable to $11.0 milldf gross proceeds from the January 2011 regi$wdirect offering of shares and warrants
net of $1.0 million of share issuance costs. Initaad cash flows from financing activities includiproceeds from the exercise of stock option:
totaling $114,000 in fiscal 2012 and $17,000 icdi2011.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangemieat$iaive, or are reasonably likely to have, a atitwe future effect on our financial
condition, changes in financial condition, revenaesxpenses, results of operations, liquidity jiedyexpenditures or capital resources that
would be material to investors.

Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our minimum contvatiobligations as of June 30, 2013:

Payments Due by Perioc

Less thar More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 year: 5 years
(In thousands)
Operating Lease Obligatiol $45€ $ 368 $ 93 $ — $ —
Purchase Obligatior 48 48 — — —
Total $504 $ 411 $ 93 $ — $ —

Our operating lease obligations consist predomipanfitoffice and lab space in Watertown, Massacttassnd Malvern, U.K. Our
purchase obligations consist of non-cancellablelpase orders for supplies and services.

We also have an agreement with a contract reseagetmization (CRO) to conduct the first of two piad Phase 11l clinical trials of
Medidur for posterior uveitis. We were contractyalbligated for up to approximately $11.0 millicor fservices under this agreement as of
June 30, 2013. The timing of actual amounts oweatkuthe agreement will depend on various factaduding patient enroliment and other
progress of the clinical trial. We can terminate #yreement at any time, and if terminated, we evaot be liable for the full amount of the
contract, but rather for services through the teatibn date plus non-cancellable CRO obligatiornthiral parties.

We also have employment agreements with our thxeeutive officers that would require us to makeesaxice payments to them if we
terminate their employment without cause or theceftees resign for good cause.
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ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK
Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

We conduct operations in two principal currenctas,U.S. dollar and the Pound Sterling )e U.S. dollar is the functional currency
our U.S. operations, and the Pound Sterling iduhetional currency for our U.K. operations. Chasmigethe foreign exchange rate of the
Pound Sterling to the U.S. dollar impact the nedraping expenses of our U.K. operations. The mihstrangthening of the U.S. dollar in fis
2013 compared to fiscal 2012 resulted in a netedeser in research and development expense of apmtety $22,000. For every incremental
5% strengthening or weakening of the weighted ayeeexchange rate of the U.S. dollar in relatiothtoPound Sterling, our research and
development expense in fiscal 2013 would have @sextor increased by $109,000, respectively. Alh@nd cash equivalents, and most othe
asset and liability balances, are denominateddh eatity’s functional currency and, accordinglye do not consider our statement of
comprehensive loss exposure to realized and uneelforeign currency gains and losses to be samifi

Changes in the foreign exchange rate of the Potertirsy to the U.S. dollar also impacted total &toalders’ equity. As reported in the
statement of comprehensive loss, the relative gtheming of the U.S. dollar in relation to the Pd@8terling at June 30, 2013 compared to
June 30, 2012 resulted in a net increase of $29r00ther comprehensive loss due to the translatfdv 31,000 of net assets of our U.K.
operations, predominantly the BioSilicon technoldaggangible asset, into U.S. dollars. For everyéntental 5% strengthening or weakenin
the U.S. dollar at June 30, 2013 in relation toRlend Sterling, our stockholders’ equity at Jube2®13 would have decreased or increased,
respectively, by approximately $56,000.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The information required by this item may be fowmdpages F-1 through F-26 of this Annual Report.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our ppatexecutive officer and principal financial affir, evaluated the effectiveness of ou
disclosure controls and procedures as of June(®@.2I'he term “disclosure controls and proceduras’gefined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-1
(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 naaraled (the “Exchange Act”), means controls andrgbhocedures of a company that are
designed to ensure that information required tdibelosed by us in the reports that we file or sitlmder the Exchange Act, is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the pieni@ds specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, thatlsuch information is accumulated
and communicated to our management, including dacipal executive officer and principal financa@fficer, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. Managemesuignizes that any controls and procedures, ritenfeow well designed and operated,
can provide only reasonable assurance of achigkigigdesired objectives, and our management nadlsapplies its judgment in evaluating
the cost-benefit relationship of possible conteoidl procedures. Based on the evaluation of outodisie controls and procedures as of
June 30, 2013, our principal executive officer aridcipal financial officer concluded that, as ath date, our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective at the reasonable assutawvel.
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(&) Managemen’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finaha@orting, as defined in Rule 13a-
15(f) or 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act, as a preadssigned by, or under the supervision of, ourggsal executive and principal financial
officers and effected by our board of directorsnagement and other personnel to provide reasoaablgance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantegeinerally accepted accounting principles
in the U.S., and includes those policies and procethat:

e pertain to the maintenance of records that in negsie detail accurately and fairly reflect the sactions and dispositions of our
assets

e provide reasonable assurance that transactions@eded as necessary to permit preparation ofifiahstatements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, #ad receipts and expenditures are being madeinrigcordance with
authorizations of management and our directors;

» provide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, osaisposition of our assets
that could have a material effect on the finansfatements

All internal control systems, no matter how welsigmed, have inherent limitations and may not pnewe detect misstatements.
Projections of any evaluations of effectiveneshutare periods are subject to the risk that costrmay become inadequate because of change
in conditions, or that the degree of compliancénlie policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness oftetmahcontrol over financial reporting as of J@@ 2013. In making this assessment
management used the criteria set forth by the Cateenof Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadwamn@éssion (“COSO”) irinternal
Control—Integrated FrameworkBased on this assessment, our management codchate as of such date, our internal control dvemcial
reporting was effective based on those criteria.

This Annual Report does not include an attestamort of the Company’s independent registeredipalaicounting firm regarding
internal control over financial reporting. Managei& report was not subject to attestation by tbenfany’s independent registered public
accounting firm pursuant to the rules of the SE& grermit the Company, as a smaller reporting caomg@ provide only managemesit'epor
in this Annual Report.

(b) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control éwancial reporting during the last quarter of flseal year covered by this Annual
Report on Form 10-K that have materially affectadare reasonably likely to materially affect, énternal control over financial reporting

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORATE GOVERN ANCE
Executive Officers

Each of our officers holds office until the firsegting of the board of directors following the narhual meeting of stockholders and
until such officer’s respective successor is chasmhqualified, unless a shorter period shall Heeen specified by the terms of such officer's
election or appointment. Our current officers astet below.

Paul Ashton, 52
President and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Ashton has served as our President and Chietiive Officer since January 2009 and was preljous Managing Director from
January 2007 and our Executive Director of Strafegy December 2005 to January 2007. From 1996 acqjuired by us in December 2005,
Dr. Ashton was the President and Chief Executiviic®f of Control Delivery Systems, Inc. (CDS), aigrdelivery company that he ¢oundec
in 1991. Dr. Ashton was previously a joint facultiember in the Departments of Ophthalmology and &yrgt the University of Kentucky,
served on the faculty of Tufts University and watlkes a pharmaceutical scientist at Hoffman-LaRoche.

Lori Freedman, 46
Vice President of Corporate Affairs, General Coliasel Company Secretary

Ms. Freedman has served as our Vice PresidentpioCate Affairs, General Counsel and SecretaryesiMay 2006, and held the same
positions at CDS from 2001 to May 2006. Prior tatftMs. Freedman served as Vice President, Busegslopment, and Counsel of
Macromedia, Inc., a provider of software for cregtinternet content and business applications, farch 2001 through September 2001.
Ms. Freedman has also served as Vice Presidengr&ebounsel, and Secretary of Allaire Corporateprovider of Internet infrastructure for
building business applications, from 1999 untilaié’s acquisition by Macromedia in 2001, as CorporaterSel of Polaroid Corporation frc
May 1998 to December 1998 and with the law firmMaDermott, Will & Emery.

Leonard S. Ross, 63
Vice President, Finance and Principal Financialceff

Mr. Ross has served as our Vice President, Finsince November 2009 and was previously our CorpdCantroller from
October 2006. Mr. Ross was designated as the Corigparincipal financial officer in March 2009. FroB901 through April 2006, Mr. Ross
served as Corporate Controller for NMT Medical,.Jrcmedical device company. From 1990 to 1999,Rdiss was employed by JetForm
Corporation, a developer of workflow software smns, where he served in various capacities, inetu¥ice President, Finance and Vice
President, International Operations.

Corporate Governance

We have adopted a written Code of Conduct thatieppd all of our employees, officers and directditsis Code of Conduct is designed
to ensure that our business is conducted with fityegnd in compliance with SEC regulations and ND¥&) and ASX listing standards. The
Code of Conduct covers adherence to laws and régnsaas well as professional conduct, includingpkasyment policies, conflicts of interest
and the protection of confidential information. Thede of Conduct is available on the “Corporate &pance” section of our website at
www.psivida.com.
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We intend to disclose any future amendments tayadvers from, the Code of Conduct that affect duealors or senior financial and
executive officers within four business days of &ineendment or waiver by filing with the SEC a Caotrieeport on Form 8-K.

Other Information
The other information required to be disclosedé@m 10 is hereby incorporated by reference to 6aB82Proxy Statement.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information required to be disclosed in ItemisLhereby incorporated by reference to our 20X P5Etatement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required to be disclosed in Itemis Bereby incorporated by reference to our 20 P6tatement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information required to be disclosed in ItemislBereby incorporated by reference to our 20X P56tatement.

ITEM 14.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
The information required to be disclosed in Itemisl4ereby incorporated by reference to our 20X P5Etatement.

PART IV
ITEM 15.  EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(a)(1) Financial Statements
The financial statements filed as part of this repee listed on the Index to Consolidated Findri8tatements on page F-1.

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

Schedules have been omitted because of the abskooeditions under which they are required or bsegthe required information is
included in the consolidated financial statementsates thereto.
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(2)(3) Exhibits.

Incorporated by Reference to SEC Filing

SEC Filing Exhibit

Exhibit No. Exhibit Description Form Date No.
Articles of Incorporation and B-Laws

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of pSivida Coi 8-K12G3 06/19/0¢ 3.1

3.2 By-Laws of pSivida Corf 8-K12G3 06/19/0¢ 3.2
Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holde

4.1 Form of Specimen Stock Certificate for Common Si 8-K12G3 06/19/0¢ 4.1

4.2 + Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Shares, datecida?24, 201. 8-K 01/19/1: 99.2

4.3+ Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Shares, datgdstiw, 201: 8-K 08/02/1: 4.1
Material Contract—Management Contracts and Compensatory Plans

10.1 Employment Agreement, between pSivida Limited aadlAshton, dated January  20-F 12/08/0¢ 4.3t
1, 2006

10.2 Non-Competition Agreement, between pSivida Limited &aail Ashton, dated 20-F 01/18/0¢ 4.3t
October 3, 200!

10.3 Employment Agreement, between pSivida Limited and Ereedman, dated as of 6-K 05/23/0¢ 99.c
May 16, 200¢

10.4 Employment Agreement, between pSivida Corp and aebB. Ross, dated 8-K 12/21/1( 10.1
December 17, 201

10.5 Option Amendment Agreement, between pSivida Corplaonard S. Ross, dated 8-K 12/21/1( 10.2
December 17, 201

10.6 Rules of the pSivida Corp. Employee Share Opti@m 8-K 06/20/0¢ 10.4(

10.7 2008 Equity Incentive Pla 8-K 08/01/1: 10.1

10.8 + Form of Stock Option Certificate for grants to exiee officers under the pSivida 8-K 09/10/0¢ 10.1
Corp. 2008 Incentive Ple

10.9 + Form of pSivida Corp. Nonstatutory Stock Optionarged to Lori Freedman on 10-K 09/26/0¢ 10.3¢
September 4, 2008 and September 10, :
Material Contract—Leases

10.10 Commercial Sublease, between Exergen CorporatidrCantrol Delivery 20-F 01/18/0¢ 4.1¢
Systems, Inc., dated as of April 6, 2(

10.11 Lease Renewal Agreement between pSivida Inc. aedger Corporation dated 10-Q 02/11/0¢ 10.1
October 18, 200
Material Contract—License and Collaboration Agreemen

10.12 # Amended and Restated License Agreement betweemdC&mlivery Systems, In 20-F 01/18/0¢ 4.1z
and Bausch & Lomb Incorporated dated December @3 28s amended on June
28, 200t

10.13 # Second Amendment to Amended and Restated LicensseAgnt between pSivda  10-K 09/25/0¢ 10.1:

US, Inc. and Bausch & Lomb dated August 1, 2
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Incorporated by Reference to SEC Filing

SEC Filing Exhibit
Exhibit No. Exhibit Description Form Date No.
10.14 # Amended and Restated Collaborative Research amthéécAgreement, datec 10-K/A 12/27/1: 10.1:
of June 14, 2011, by and among pSivida Corp, p&il8, Inc., pSiMedica
Limited and Pfizer, Inc
10.15 # Amended and Restated Collaboration Agreement bybahdeen pSivida Inc. 8-K 04/26/1( 10.01
and Alimera Sciences, Inc. dated March 14, Z
Other Exhibits
21.1(a) Subsidiaries of pSivida Cor
23.1(a) Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing, Deloitte & Touche
LLP
31.1(a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo Rule 13at4(a) and Rul
15c¢-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act, as amel
31.2(a) Certification of Principal Financial Officer purquao Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule
15c¢-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act, as amel
32.1(a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2(a) Certification of Principal Financial Officer purquao 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 200z
101(b) The following materials from pSivida Corp.’s AnniRéport on Form 10-K for

the year ended June 30, 2013, formatted in eXtenBibsiness Reporting
Language (XBRL): (i) Consolidated Balance Sheethiat 30, 2013 and 2012;
(i) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive fosthe years ended June
30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, (iii) Consolidated Statemsief Stockholders’ Equity
for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2} Lgnsolidated Statements
of Cash Flows for the years ended June 30, 20112 26d 2011; and (v) Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statemel

Confidential treatment has been granted for paostigiithis exhibi

+  The final versions of documents denoted as “fofirhave been omitted pursuant to Rule 12b-31. Simth versions are substantially
identical in all material respects to the filedsiens of such documents, provided that the nantleecihvestor, and the investor’s and/or
the Compan’s signhatures are included in the final versic

* Management contracts and compensatory plans madgements required to be filed as exhibits purstaltem 15(b) of this annual

report.

(a) Filed herewitr

(b) Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, theRXBelated information in Exhibit 101 to this AnrddReport on Form 10-K shall not be
deemed “filed” or a part of a registration statetmrprospectus for purposes of Sections 11 orf1BeSecurities Act of 1933, as
amended, and is not filed for purposes of Sect®boflthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as am#nuleotherwise subject to the
liabilities of those section:
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

PSIVIDA CORP.

By: /s/ PAUL A SHTON
Paul Ashton,
President and Chief Executive Officel

Date: September 27, 201

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant in the capacities and on thesdiaidicated.

Name Title Date
/s/ Davib J. MAzzo Chairman of the Board of Directors September 27, 2013
David J. Mazzo
/s PAUL A SHTON President, Chief Executive Officer and Director ~ September 27, 2013
Paul Ashton (Principal Executive Officer
/s/ LEONARDS. Ross Vice President, Finance (Principal Financial and September 27, 2013
Leonard S. Ross Accounting Officer)
/s/  DouGLAS G ODSHALL Director September 27, 2013
Douglas Godshall
/s/  PauL A. H OPPER Director September 27, 2013
Paul Hopper
/s/  MICHAEL R OGERS Director September 27, 2013
Michael Rogers
/s| PETERS AVAS Director September 27, 2013
Peter Savas

51



Table of Contents

PSIVIDA CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of p&vCorp.
Watertown, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of pSivida Corp. and subsidiaries (thafany”) as of June 30, 2013
and 2012, and the related consolidated stateméntsmprehensive loss, stockholders’ equity, andh ¢&svs for each of the three years in the
period ended June 30, 2013. These financial statenagee the responsibility of the Company’s manag@mOur responsibility is to express an
opinion on the financial statements based on oditsu

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &andbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hamewere we engaged to perform, an audit of isrirdl control over financial reporting.
Our audits included consideration of internal cohtwer financial reporting as a basis for desigrandit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsasmopinion on the effectiveness of the Compamg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autiibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenppating the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dgagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetagresent fairly, in all material respects, tin@ricial position of pSivida Corp. and
subsidiaries as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, anck#udts of their operations and their cash flowssfach of the three years in the period endec
June 30, 2013, in conformity with accounting prples generally accepted in the United States of haae

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
September 27, 2013
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Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalel
Marketable securitie
Accounts and other receivabl

Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Intangible assets, n

Other asset

Total assets
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl

Accrued expense

Deferred revenu

Total current liabilities
Deferred revenu

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 1:

Stockholders' equity:

PSIVIDA CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands except share amounts)

Preferred stock, $.001 par value, 5,000,000 star®rized, no shares issued and outstar
Common stock, $.001 par value, 60,000,000 shatb®azed, 23,297,011 and 20,802,592 share:
issued and outstanding at June 30, 2013 and 284@2ectively

Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated defici

Accumulated other comprehensive inca

Total stockholder equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements

F-3

June 30,

2013 2012
$ 6,89¢ $ 4,62
3,37¢ 9,94¢
597 967
1,59¢ 421
12,46¢ 15,95¢
17¢ 33t
3,43( 4,22¢
17¢€ 77
$ 16,24¢ $ 20,597
$ 671 $ 394
1,89¢ 60¢
73€ 2,17¢
3,30¢ 3,17¢
5,24¢ 3,78:
8,54¢ 6,96
23 21
270,41! 264,43
(263,65() (251,75
92( 942
7,70( 13,63¢
$ 16,24¢ $ 20,597
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PSIVIDA CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Revenues

Collaborative research and developrr

Royalty income
Total revenue
Operating expense
Research and developmt
General and administrati
Impairment of intangible asse
Total operating expens
Operating los!
Other income (expense
Change in fair value of derivativi
Interest income, ne
Other expense, n

Total other incom:
Loss before income taxi
Income tax benefi
Net loss

Net loss per shar
Basic and dilute:

Weighted average common shares outstani

Basic and dilutes

Net loss
Other comprehensive (loss) incor

Foreign currency translation adjustme

(In thousands except per share data)

Net unrealized gain (loss) on marketable secul

Other comprehensive (loss) incol

Comprehensive los

See notes to consolidated financial statements

F-4

Year Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011
$ 78 $ 208 $ 361
1,36¢ 1,44¢ 1,35:
2,14¢ 3,52¢ 4,96¢
7,00¢ 7,03¢ 6,86¢
7,16¢ 6,86¢ 8,10«
— 14,83( —
14,17+ 28,73 14,96¢
(12,03)  (2521) (10,009
— 17¢ 1,14

16 38 30
) @ 13

14 207 1,157
(12,01) (25,009 (8,846)
117 16¢ 21¢
$(11,900  $(24,83)  $ (8,629
$ (05 $ (119 $ (0.49
23,04 20,79: 19,48¢
$(11,900  $(24,83)  $ (8,629
(29) (492) 91¢
7 5 (11)

(22) (487) 90¢
$(11,92)  $(25,32)  $ (7,720
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PSIVIDA CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance at July 1, 2010

Net loss

Other comprehensive incor
Issuance of stock, net of issue cc
Exercise of stock optior
Stoclk-based compensatic
Balance at June 30, 20

Net loss

Other comprehensive lo
Exercise of stock optior
Stoclk-based compensatic
Balance at June 30, 20

Net loss

Other comprehensive lo
Issuance of stock, net of issue cc
Stoclk-based compensatic

Balance at June 30, 20

(In thousands except share data)

Common Stock Accumulated
Other Total
Par Value Additional Accumulated Comprehensive Stockholders’
Number of Paid-In
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Income Equity
18,531,39 $ 18 $250,79¢ $(218,29Y $ 521 $ 33,04:
— — — (8,62¢) — (8,62¢)
— — — — 90¢ 90¢
2,210,001 2 10,04: — — 10,04:
7,25( — 17 — — 17
— — 2,052 — — 2,052
20,748,64 21 262,90¢ (226,92)) 1,42¢ 37,43
— — — (24,835 — (24,83F)
— — — — (487) (487)
53,95( — 114 — — 114
— — 1,411 — — 1,411
20,802,59 21 264,43 (251,759 94z 13,63¢
- - - (11,900 - (11,900
— — — — (22) (22)
2,494,41! 2 4,66 — — 4,66¢
— — 1,315 — — 1,315
23,297,01 $ 23 $270,41! $(263,65%) $ 92C $ 7,70C

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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PSIVIDA CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash flowsflaperating activities

Impairment of intangible asse
Amortization of intangible asse
Depreciation of property and equipm
Change in fair value of derivativi
Amortization of bond premium on marketable secess
Stoclk-based compensatic
Deferred income tax bene
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts and other receivabl
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Accounts payabl
Accrued expense
Deferred revenu
Net cash used in operating activit
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of marketable securi
Maturities of marketable securiti
Proceeds from sales of marketable secut
Purchases of property and equipir
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of stock, net of issuansts
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti
Net cash provided by financing activiti
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on castcasi equivalent
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivakent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of yei

Cash and cash equivalents at end of yei

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for income tax

See notes to consolidated financial statements

F-6

Year Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011
$(11,900  $(24,83)  $ (8,629
— 14,83( —
76¢ 2,037 3,30-
225 19C 53
— (170) (1,140
152 264 18¢
1,317 1,411 2,05:
— (13) (20¢
364 (12€) 28E
(1,279 (44) (36)
277 64 (64)
1,28¢ (712) 14¢€
35 (1,89%) 88C
(8,745) (9,007) (3,170
(7,759  (1539) (15,969
14,18¢ 15,29¢ 6,59¢
_ 1,10¢ _
(68) (40E) (139
6,35¢ 60€ (9,499
4,66¢ — 10,04:
— 114 17
4,66¢ 114 10,06(
) (6) 6
2,27¢ (8,287) (2,607)
4,62t 12,91 15,51
$ 689¢ $ 462  $12091:
$ — $ — $ 56
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PSIVIDA CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Operations

pSivida Corp. (together with its subsidiaries, t6empany”), incorporated in Delaware, develops tisyystained-release products
designed to deliver drugs and biologics at a ctlett@nd steady rate for weeks, months or yearsdlss core technology platforms,
Durasert™ and BioSilicon™, the Company is focusedreatment of chronic diseases of the back o&tfeeand is also exploring applications
outside ophthalmology. The Company has developexttbf the four sustained-release products fotrtreat of retinal diseases currently
approved in the U.S. or European Union (“EU”"), @sdead product candidate began a Phase Il dini@l in the fiscal 2013 fourth quarter.
The Company’s strategy includes developing prodinctspendently while continuing to leverage ithte@logy platforms through
collaboration and license agreements.

ILUVIEN @, the Company’s most recently approved produc@nifmjectable, sustained-release micro-insertghatides treatment of
vision impairment associated with chronic diabet&cular edema (“DME") considered insufficiently pessive to available therapies over a
period of up to three years. ILUVIEN is licensedatad sold by Alimera Sciences, Inc. (“Alimeradjyd the Company is entitled to a share o
net profits, as defined, from Alimera’s sales of/MIEN for DME. Alimera commenced the commercialhah of ILUVIEN for DME in the
United Kingdom and Germany in the second quart®04df3 and expects to launch in France in thedustrter of 2014. Alimera is also seeking
marketing approval for ILUVIEN for DME in the U.$ the second quarter of 2013, Alimera receive@wa Rrescription Drug User Fee Act
(“PDUFA") goal date of October 17, 2013 after resufting its New Drug Application (“NDA”") for ILUVIEN for DME. The resubmission
responded to a second Complete Response Lettet [JC&ceived from the U.S. Food and Drug Adminisioa (“FDA”) in November 2011.

Medidur ™, the Company'’s lead development product, comneetiee first of two planned pivotal Phase Il cliaidrials for the
treatment of chronic non-infectious uveitis affagtihe posterior segment of the eye (“posterioitis/gin June 2013. Medidur uses the same
Durasert micro-insert used in ILUVIEN and delivarbower dose of the same drug as the Company’s &p#eved Retiseft for posterior
uveitis. The Company is developing Medidur indepmanity.

The Company is also developing a bioerodible, tajele micro-insert delivering latanoprost (the “dabprost Product{o treat glaucorr
and ocular hypertension. Under an amended coll&ibaragreement, Pfizer has an option, under cediagumstances, to license the
development and commercialization of the LatanapPosduct worldwide.

The Company is engaged in pre-clinical research wispect to both its BioSilicon and Durasert te@tbgy platforms. The primary focus
of the BioSilicon technology research is the simstdidelivery, using Tethadur™, of peptides, prateamtibodies and other large biologic
molecules in both ophthalmic and non-ophthalmidiappons. The Company’s research program alsaides the use of Durasert technology
in orthopedic applications and for systemic deljyef therapeutic agents.

The Company’s FDA-approved produrRetisert® provides sustained release treatment of postevigitis for approximately two and a
half years and is licensed to and sold by Baustio&b.

The Company has a history of operating losses asdihanced its operations primarily from the pexteof sales of its equity securities
and the receipt of license fees, research and a@want funding, royalties and contingent cash paysom its collaboration partners. The
Company believes that its cash, cash equivalemtsremketable securities of $10.3 million at JuneZ813, together with $9.9 million of net
proceeds received from an underwritten public aifgpf common shares in July 2013 and expecteds®&etioyalty income and
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other expected cash inflows under existing collabon agreements, will enable the Company to marits current and planned operations
through calendar year 2014. This includes expembsts through that date of Phase Il clinical &riad the posterior uveitis micro-insert, but
excludes any potential milestone or net profit igtseunder the Alimera collaboration agreement. Tohenpany’s financial resources could be
significantly improved if ILUVIEN for DME is approsd by the FDA, which would entitle the Company ®2&.0 million milestone payment,
or if Alimera successfully commercializes ILUVIENHDME in the EU or, if approved, in the U.S. Ther@pany’s ability to fund its planned
operations beyond 2014, including completion ohpkd Phase Il trials of the posterior uveitis rmiarsert, is expected to depend on the
amount and timing of cash receipts under existoitpboration agreements, as well as any futureabolation or other agreements and/or
financing transactions.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements are presentddS. dollars in accordance with generally ateé@ccounting principles in the
United States (“U.S. GAAP”) and include the acceuritpSivida Corp. and its wholly-owned subsidiarigll intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated. The Comparscsifiyear ends on June 30 of each year. The yrdesiddune 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 ma
be referred to herein as fiscal 2013, fiscal 20d@ féscal 2011, respectively. Throughout theserfaial statements, references to “US$” and “$
are to U.S. dollars and references to “A$” are tsthalian dollars.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesméntonformity with U.S. GAAP requires managententiake certain estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts aalodure of assets and liabilities at the datde@ftbnsolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts and disclosure of revenues arehsgp during the reporting periods. Significant agament estimates and assumptions
include, among others, those related to revenwsgretion for multiple-deliverable arrangements,aeerability of intangible assets, realization
of deferred tax assets and the valuation of stgtion awards. Actual results could differ from thestimates.

Foreign Currency

The functional currency of each entity is the caeseof the primary economic environment in whichtthntity operates - the U.S. dollar
or the Pound Sterling.

Assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign sidiary are translated at period-end exchange.rAtasunts included in the statements
of comprehensive loss and cash flows are transktdte weighted average exchange rates for thied&ains and losses from currency
translation are included in accumulated other cam@nsive income as a separate component of statekistdquity in the consolidated balar
sheets. The balance of accumulated other comprgieansome attributable to foreign currency tratislawas $921,000 at June 30, 2013 and
$950,000 at June 30, 2012. Foreign currency gaifesees arising from transactions denominatedieidin currencies, whether realized or
unrealized, are recorded in other income, netencdnsolidated statements of comprehensive lossvarelnot significant for all periods
presented.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents represent highly liquid investrmevith maturities of three months or less at thte dé purchase, principally consisting
of institutional money market funds.

F-8



Table of Contents

Marketable Securities

Marketable securities consist of investments witlodginal or remaining maturity of greater thanetiy days at the date of purchase. Th
Company has classified its marketable securities/aable-for-sale. Accordingly, the Company refsothese investments at fair value, with
unrealized gains and temporary losses excluded &mings and reported, net of tax, in accumulathdr comprehensive income, which is a
component of stockholders’ equity. If the Compastedmines that a decline of any investment is etth@n-temporary, the investment is
written down to fair value. As of June 30, 2013 @0d 2, there were no investments in a significaméalized loss position. The fair value of
marketable securities is determined based on quoéeklet prices at the balance sheet dates of the sasimilar instruments. The amortized
cost of debt securities is adjusted for amortizatibpremiums and accretion of discounts througthéoearlier of sale or maturity. Such
amortization and accretion amounts are includddtarest income, net in the consolidated statem&fitemprehensive loss. The cost of
marketable securities sold is determined by theiSpédentification method.

Concentrations of Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@npany to concentrations of credit risk consigigipally of cash, cash equivalents anc
marketable securities. At June 30, 2013, all ofGbenpany’s interest-bearing cash equivalent balraggregating $6.3 million, were
concentrated in one institutional money market fthat has investments consisting primarily of ¢edtes of deposit, commercial paper, time
deposits, U.S. government agency securities, tredmils and treasury repurchase agreements. Ginetese deposits may be redeemed L
demand and, therefore, bear minimal risk. Marketablkcurities at June 30, 2013 consist of investigeatte corporate bonds and commercial
paper. The Company'’s investment policy, approvethbyBoard of Directors, includes guidelines refatio diversification and maturities
designed to preserve principal and liquidity.

Pfizer accounted for $368,000, or 17%, of totabraes in fiscal 2013, $754,000, or 21%, of totaéreies in fiscal 2012 and $3.3
million, or 67%, of total revenues in fiscal 20Bausch & Lomb accounted for $1.4 million, or 64%taial revenues in fiscal 2013, $1.4
million, or 41%, of total revenues in fiscal 20Irda$1.4 million, or 27%, of total revenues in fis2@l1l.

Bausch & Lomb accounted for $316,000, or 53%, t#ltaccounts receivable at June 30, 2013 and $8@2d¢0 46%, of total accounts
receivable at June 30, 2012.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash equivalents, accaeatsvable, accounts payable and accrued expeppesxanate fair value because of
their short-term maturity.

Accounts and Other Receivables

Receivables consist primarily of (i) quarterly rties earned; (ii) U.K. research and developmexttadits; and (iii) accrued interest on
marketable securities.

Debt and Equity Instruments

Debt and equity instruments are classified as eltalkilities or equity in accordance with the sta#rge of the contractual arrangement.
Warrants issued in connection with share issuagantbee denominated in a currency (A$) other th@anGompany’s functional currency (US$),
the last of which expired in July 2012, were trdaas derivative liabilities, reflecting the variatdmount of functional currency to be received
upon potential exercise. After initial recogniti@ubsequent changes in the fair value of the direvéiabilities were recorded in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive losscim egporting period. Fair value was determinedgisiiBlack-Scholes valuation model.
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost lessragated depreciation, which is computed using treght-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets (generalbetlyears). Leasehold improvements are amortizedstraight-line basis over the shorter of the
remaining non-cancellable lease term or the udied of the assets. Repairs and maintenance amsexpensed as incurred.

Leases

Leases are classified at their inception as eitperating or capital leases based on the econarbgtance of the agreement. Lease
payments made under operating leases are recogaszam expense on a straight-line basis over #se erm.

Impairment of Intangible Assets

The Company’s finite life intangible assets inclutdeacquired Durasert and BioSilicon patented netdgies, which are being amortized
on a straight-line basis over twelve years. Tharigible asset lives were determined based upoantepated period that the Company will
derive future cash flows from the intangible assetsisidering the effects of legal, regulatory, tcactual, competitive and other economic
factors. The Company continually monitors whetheargs or circumstances have occurred that indibatethe remaining estimated useful life
of its intangible assets may warrant revision. Tleenpany assesses potential impairments to itsditilnassets when there is evidence that
events ochanges in circumstances indicate that the cargingunt of an asset may not be recoverable. Aniimpat loss is recognized wh
the future undiscounted net cash flows expecteddolt from the use of an asset are less thamiitging value. If the Company considers an
asset to be impaired, the impairment charge tebegnized is measured by the amount by which thging value of the asset exceeds its
estimated fair value. During the quarter ended Baxar 31, 2011, the Company recorded a $14.8 millitangible asset impairment charge
related to its Durasert and BioSilicon technolodiese Note 4).

Revenue Recognition
Collaborative Research and Development and Mulipéiverable Arrangements

The Company enters into collaborative arrangemsittsstrategic partners for the development androencialization of product
candidates utilizing the Company’s technologies #rms of these agreements have typically includeltiple deliverables by the Company
(for example, license rights, research and devedopirservices and manufacturing of clinical matsjial exchange for consideration to the
Company of some combination of non-refundable Beefees, research and development funding, payrbaeséxl upon achievement of clinical
development or other milestones and royalties énféihm of a designated percentage of product sailpsofits.

Revenue is recognized when there is persuasivemsgdthat an arrangement exists, delivery has matuhe price is fixed and
determinable and collection is reasonably assiMedtiple-deliverable arrangements, such as license andaj@veht agreements, are analy
to determine whether the deliverables can be stgghoa whether they must be accounted for as desumt of accounting. When deliverables
are separable, consideration received is allodatéte separate units of accounting based on thgve selling price method and the
appropriate revenue recognition principles areiafdgb each unit. When the Company determinesaharrangement should be accounted fo
as a single unit of accounting, it must determimeperiod over which the performance obligation$ lve performed and revenue will be
recognized.

The Company estimates its performance period use¥enue recognition based on the specific texhemch agreement, and adjusts
performance periods, if appropriate, based on pipdiGable facts and circumstances. Significant ganzent judgment may be required to
determine the level of effort required under amagement and the period over which the Companypeaed to complete its performance
obligations
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under the arrangement. If the Company cannot reddpestimate when its performance obligationsegittre completed or become
inconsequential, then revenue recognition is deteuntil the Company can reasonably make such aginRevenue is then recognized over
the remaining estimated period of performance utiegcumulative catch-up method.

The Company prospectively adopted the provisionsazbunting Standards Update No. 2009-13, Reveragagtition (Topic 605);
Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangeme(itaSU 2009-13") for new and materially modified angements originating on or after July 1,
2010. ASU 20093 provides updated guidance on how the delivesahlan arrangement should be separated, and hasideration should t
allocated, and it changes the level of evidencgtaridalone selling price required to separate eelbles by allowing a vendor to make its best
estimate of the standalone selling price of detibérs when vendor-specific objective evidence wdtparty evidence of selling price is not
available.

In June 2011, the Company materially modified @82 Collaborative Research and License AgreemehtRizer, and the Company
applied the provisions of ASU 2009-13 to this agament. The accounting for all the Company’s othésting arrangements will continue
under the prior accounting standards unless anggraent is materially modified. The adoption of A30D9-13 had a material impact on the
Company’s financial results, increasing collaba@tiesearch and development revenues by $3.3 mfthiothe year ended June 30, 2011,
compared to what would have been recognized ha@dngpany continued to apply prior revenue recognituidance.

Royalties

Royalty income is recognized upon the sale of #hated products, provided that the royalty amoangsfixed or determinable, collection
of the related receivable is reasonably assuredren@ompany has no remaining performance obligatimder the arrangement. Such
revenues are included as royalty income.

If royalties are received when the Company has menmaperformance obligations, the royalty paymemtsild be attributed to the
services being provided under the arrangementleréfore revenue would be recognized as such pesfore obligations are performed. Suct
revenues are included as collaborative researclie@vnelopment revenues.

Reimbursement of Cos

The Company may provide research and developmerites under collaboration arrangements to agsiativancing the development
licensed products. The Company acts primarily psreipal in these transactions, and, accordingitygpounts received are classified as a
component of revenue to be recognized consistehtthe revenue recognition policy summarized ab@bhe. Company records the expenses
incurred and reimbursed on a gross basis.

Deferred Revenu

Amounts received prior to satisfying the above nexerecognition criteria are recorded as deferegdnue in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. Amounts not expectee tecognized within one year following the balsheet date are classified as non-
current deferred revenue.

Research and Development

Research and development costs are charged tatiopsras incurred. These costs include all dirests; including cash compensation,
stock-based compensation and benefits for reseatidlevelopment personnel, amortization of intdegilssets, supplies and materials, direct
external costs including costs of clinical triaiBnical materials, pre-clinical programs, regutstaffairs, external consultants, and other
operational costs related to the Company'’s resemrdidevelopment of its product candidates.
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Stock-Based Compensation

The Company may award stock options and othereaited instruments to its employees, directorscandultants pursuant to
stockholder-approved plans. Compensation costetlat such awards is based on the fair value afhgteument on the grant date and is
recognized, net of estimated forfeitures, on a egagesting basis over the requisite service pddodach separately vesting tranche of the
awards. The Company estimates the fair value akstption awards using the Black-Scholes optiomaibn model.

Net (Loss) Income per Share

Basic net (loss) income per share is computed \agidg net (loss) income by the weighted-averagaiper of common shares
outstanding during the period. For periods in whitel Company reports net income, diluted net incpareshare is determined by adding tc
weighted-average number of common shares outstautitknaverage number of dilutive common equivadbiares using the treasury stock
method, unless the effect is anti-dilutive.

The following potentially dilutive securities oustding, prior to the application of the treasugcktmethod, have been excluded from
computation of diluted weighted-average sharesandiéng for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012@bd, as they would be anti-dilutive:

June 30,
2013 2012 2011
Options 3,554,54! 3,165,85! 2,740,89!
Warrants 1,176,10! 2,270,18! 7,820,22

4,730,65: 5,436,04 10,561,12

Comprehensive (Loss) Income

Comprehensive (loss) income is comprised of nassjleacome, foreign currency translation adjustmamnid unrealized gains and losses
on available-for-sale marketable securities.

Income Tax

The Company accounts for income taxes under thet asd liability method. Deferred income tax asseis liabilities are computed for
the expected future impact of differences betwéerfinancial reporting and income tax bases oftass® liabilities and for the expected
future benefit to be derived from tax credits amsklcarry forwards. Such deferred income tax coatjouns are measured based on enacted tg
laws and rates applicable to the years in whickghemporary differences are expected to be reedwarsettled. A valuation allowance is
provided against net deferred tax assets if, bardtie available evidence, it is more likely tham that some or all of the net deferred tax a
will not be realized.

The Company determines whether it is more likegnthot that a tax position will be sustained upcemanation. If it is not more likely
than not that a position will be sustained, nonthefbenefit attributable to the position is redagd. The tax benefit to be recognized for any
tax position that meets the more likely than nebgmition threshold is calculated as the largesiumhthat is more than 50% likely of being
realized upon resolution of the contingency. Thenany accounts for interest and penalties relateshtertain tax positions as part of its
income tax (expense) benefit.

Recently Adopted and Recently Issued Accounting Prouncements

New accounting pronouncements are issued peridgioaithe Financial Accounting Standards Board (38%) and are adopted by the
Company as of the specified effective dates. Urddissrwise disclosed below, the Company believasttte impact of recently issued and
adopted pronouncements will not have a material
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impact on the Company’s financial position, resofteperations and cash flows or do not apply ee@ompany’s operations.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 201Cdamprehensive Income (Topic 220) — Presentatid@oofiprehensive Incomahich provide:
new guidance on the presentation of comprehensoanie. This guidance requires a company to presgnponents of net income (loss) and
other comprehensive income in one continuous s&téor in two separate, but consecutive, statem&htre are no changes to the
components that are recognized in net income (lmss)her comprehensive income under current GARR. Company adopted this guidance
for the quarter ended September 30, 2012 and leasmed the required information in one continstatement of operations and
comprehensive loss on a comparative basis. Othardtchange in presentation, the adoption of thidagice did not have a material impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

3. License and Collaboration Agreements
Alimera

Under a collaboration agreement with Alimera, agaded in March 2008, (the “Alimera Agreement”), @@mpany licensed to Alimera
the rights to develop, market and sell certain pobdandidates, including ILUVIEN. Alimera agreedpay a $25.0 million milestone payment
upon FDA approval of ILUVIEN for DME and assumetifalancial responsibility for the development afdnsed products under the Alimera
Agreement. In addition, the Company is entitled 0% share of any future net profits, as defioadsales of ILUVIEN by Alimera, measur
guarterly on a country-by-country basis, subjecnmffset of 20% of net losses, as defined, presljoincurred by Alimera on a country-by-
country basis. In the event that Alimera sublicersammercialization, the Company is entitled to 28f%oyalties and 33% of non-royalty
consideration received by Alimera, less certaimyted deductions.

The terms of the Alimera Agreement defined the padod of the Company’s performance obligation®asember 31, 2009.
Accordingly, amounts received thereafter are reeghas revenue upon receipt or at such earlier, dapplicable, on which any such amo
is both fixed and determinable and reasonably adsoir collectability.

Revenue related to the Alimera Agreement totalet] (B for fiscal 2013, $111,000 for fiscal 2012 &1®2,000 for fiscal 2011 and
consisted of reimbursements for licensed patentdanelopment costs.

Pfizer

In June 2011, the Company and Pfizer entered imtdraended and Restated Collaborative Research igedde agreement (the
“Restated Pfizer Agreement”) to focus solely ondiee@elopment of a sustained-release bioerodibleorinsert designed to deliver latanoprost
for human ophthalmic disease or conditions othan tliveitis. The original Pfizer agreement was ¢iffety terminated, including the cessation
of Pfizer's $500,000 quarterly funding of the rasbgprogram. Upon execution of the Restated PAzgeement, Pfizer made an upfront
payment of $2.3 million and the Company agreeds®aommercially reasonable efforts to fund develapnof the Latanoprost Product, with
technical assistance from Pfizer, for at leastywas and, thereafter, at the Company’s option,utpinccompletion of Phase Il clinical trials,
designated as Proof-of-Concept (“POC”). An investiig-sponsored Phase I/Il dose-escalation studggsing to assess the safety and efficac
of this insert for patients with ocular hypertemsand glaucoma. Within 90 days following receiptled Company’s final report demonstrating
POC, Pfizer may exercise its option for an exclesivorldwide license to develop and commercialeeltatanoprost Product in return for a
$20.0 million payment, double-digit sales-basedtigs and additional development, regulatory aldssperformance milestone payments of
up to $146.5 million. If the Company elects to eedsvelopment of the Latanoprost Product priooto@etion of Phase Il clinical trials, Pfi:
would still have the right to exercise an optionda exclusive worldwide license to develop and emrtialize the Latanoprost Product upon
payment of a lesser option fee, with comparable
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reductions in future sales-based royalties andratésignated milestones. If Pfizer does not exeritgsoption, the Restated Pfizer Agreement
will automatically terminate provided, however, ttkile Company will retain the right to develop aminmercialize the Latanoprost Produci
its own or with a partner.

Based upon the significant changes to the terntiseobriginal Pfizer agreement, the Company consiiéhhe June 2011 Restated Pfizer
Agreement a material modification and applied thielgnce of ASU 2009-13 to this arrangement. The @onw's deliverables under the
Restated Pfizer Agreement include conducting teearch and development program for the Latanophastuct through completion of Phase
Il (the “R&D program”) and participation on a Joiateering Committee (“JSC”). Having determined thatJSC does not have standalone
value from the R&D program, the Company combinaxs¢hdeliverables into a single unit of accountirtge performance period is the
expected period over which the services of the dnetbunit are performed. The Company concludedttie@aPfizer exercise option for the
worldwide exclusive license is not a deliverabldgha arrangement, because it is a substantiveroatid is not priced at a significant and
incremental discount.

The total arrangement consideration of the Restafieér Agreement totaled $10.05 million, which sisted of the $7.75 million of
deferred revenue on the Company'’s balance shéee affective date plus the $2.3 million upfronypeent. The difference between the total
arrangement consideration and the estimated saqdtiog of the combined deliverables, or $3.3 millizvas recognized as collaborative rese
and development revenue in the quarter ended Jurzg021, the period of the modification. To deterenihe estimated selling price of the
combined deliverable, the Company applied an estidhanargin to its cost projections for the combidetiverable. The estimated selling price
of $6.7 million is being recognized as collaboratresearch and development revenue over the expgettormance period using the
proportional performance method. During fiscal 20th@ Company increased its estimate of the cuielgerformance period from 4 to 6
years to provide for additional research undefatir@ement prior to commencement of Phase |l clitiizds. As a result, the current portion
deferred revenue has been reduced to $371,000@t3ly 2013 compared to $2.2 million at June 30@22Wotal deferred revenue was $5.6
million at June 30, 2013 and $6.0 million at JuBe Z12. The Company recorded collaborative rebemmnd development revenue related to
the Restated Pfizer Agreement of $368,000 in fi2al3, $754,000 in fiscal 2012 and $3.3 milliodigtal 2011. Costs associated with
conducting the R&D program are reflected in opaggxpenses in the period in which they are inclirre

If any subsequent payments are received from Rfizeluding exercise option, milestone and salesetaoyalty consideration, which
would occur after completion of the Company’s perfance period under the Restated Pfizer Agreersanh payments would be recognized
as revenue when all the revenue criteria are met.

Pfizer owned approximately 8.0% of the Company'standing shares at June 30, 2013.

Bausch & Lomb

Pursuant to a licensing and development agreerasm@tmended, Bausch & Lomb has a worldwide exclugigase to make and sell the
Company'’s Retisert and Vitrasert products in reforrroyalties based on sales. Bausch & Lomb disnoad sales of Vitrasert in the second
quarter of fiscal 2013.

Royalty income totaled approximately $1.4 milliongach of the three years in the period ended 30n2013. Accounts receivable from
Bausch & Lomb totaled $316,000 at June 30, 201334d@,000 at June 30, 2012.

Enigma Therapeutics

The Company entered into an exclusive, worldwidalty-bearing license agreement in December 20d2naled and restated in March
2013, with Enigma Therapeutics Limited (“Enigmad) the development of BrachySil, a BioSilicon prodeandidate for the treatment of
pancreatic and other types of cancer. The Compagsived an upfront fee of $100,000, included itadmirative research and development
revenue, and
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is entitled to an 8% sales-based royalty, 20% bfisense consideration and milestones based oreggty product sales. Enigma is obligated
to pay an annual license maintenance fee of $100d@ditable during the ensuing twelve monthsregaeimbursable patent maintenance
costs and sales-based royalties. The Company hesnsequential performance obligations under thigria license agreement and,
accordingly, any amounts to which the Company t#led under the agreement will be recognized asmae when the revenue recognition
criteria are met. There was no balance of defeeenue with respect to this agreement at Jun2Cg(s.

Intrinsiq

In January 2008, the Company and Intrinsiqg Matei@yman Limited (“Intrinsiq”) entered into an agmeent pursuant to which Intrinsiq
acquired an exclusive field-of-use license to depelnd commercialize nutraceutical and food sciepgdications of BioSilicon, and certain
related assets, for $1.2 million. Provided therigmagreement remained in effect, Intrinsig wagat#d to pay the Company aggregate
minimum royalties of $3.55 million through April 28, of which the first $450,000 was paid in Jul{p20

The Company determined the performance periodeofitknse arrangement to be 17 years, coinciditig thé last to expire of the
patents licensed to Intrinsig, and recognized bollative research and development revenue usingutinelative catch-up method.

In July 2011, Intrinsig terminated the license agnent, and the Company acquired the BioSilicortedlaapital equipment assets of
Intrinsig for $223,000, and employed four formetrilmsiq employees. The fair value of the tangildseds acquired approximated the total
acquisition consideration. The license terminatiesulted in the recognition of collaborative resbaand development revenue of $1.1 million
in the quarter ended September 30, 2011, repregethie total Intrinsiq deferred revenue balanciat 30, 2011. The Company recognized
collaborative research and development revenueruhddicense agreement of $83,000 in fiscal 2011.

4. Intangible Assets
The reconciliation of intangible assets for thergeznded June 30, 2013 and 2012 was as followhkdirsands):

June 30,
2013 2012

Patented technologie!

Gross carrying amount at beginning of y $ 39,55¢ $ 55,42
Asset impairment wri-down — (14,830
Foreign currency translation adjustme (615 (1,03¢)
Gross carrying amount at end of y: 38,94 39,55¢
Accumulated amortization at beginning of y (35,330 (33,859
Amortization expens (769) (2,037%)
Foreign currency translation adjustme 58¢ 56E
Accumulated amortization at end of y« (35,51) (35,330
Net book value at end of ye $ 3,43( $ 4,22¢
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In the 2011 CRL, the FDA did not grant marketinggval for ILUVIEN for DME and, as a result, the @pany did not receive a $25.0
million milestone payment from Alimera and Alimesas unable to market ILUVIEN for DME in the U.S.IIBwing the public announcement
of the 2011 CRL, there was a significant declinthin Company’s market capitalization from $82.0lionl immediately prior to the
announcement to $23.1 million at December 31, 20h&. Company determined that the combination oR0tel CRL and the decline in the
Company’s market capitalization were impairmenidgatbrs of the Company’s finite-lived intangiblesats.

As of December 31, 2011, the forecasted probabil#jghted undiscounted cash flows for the intaregddsets were not expected to be
sufficient to recover the aggregate carrying vati$19.4 million, which consisted of $6.3 millioarfthe Durasert technology and $13.1 mil
for the BioSilicon technology. To assess the recaiviéity of the combined intangible assets, manag@msed a combination of market-based
and income-based valuation methodologies. Usingrituket-based approach as the primary indicatéaiofalue, an enterprise value of $4.4
million (market capitalization less existing capi@sources) was adjusted for an estimated copteshium and for other working capital items
to derive an implied fair value of the intangibksats of $4.6 million. Under the income-based agghrpthe forecasted cash flows expected fo
the intangible assets were discounted using adtecost of capital rates taking into account Congpspecific risks. The resulting fair value
under this approach supported the fair value detexsnunder the market-based approach. Based @abthes analyses, the fair value of the
combined intangible assets was allocated to edahgdible based on the values determined undenttmerie-based approach, as follows (in
thousands):

Pos~impairment
Carrying Value at
Pre-impairment

Carrying Value at December
December 31, 201 Impairment Charge 31, 2011
Durasert $ 6,31¢ $ (3,14)) $ 3,17
BioSilicon 13,10¢ (11,689 1,41¢
$ 19,42¢ $ (14,830 $ 4,59¢
The net book value of the Company'’s intangible saeJune 30, 2013 and 2012 is summarized asv®lm thousands):
Estimated
Remaining
Useful Life at
June 30, June 30, 201
2013 2012 (Years)
Patented technologie!
Durasert $2,38: $2,91- 4.t
BioSilicon 1,047 1,31¢ 4.t

$3,43( $4,22¢

The Company amortizes its intangible assets wititefilives on a straight-line basis over their exdjve estimated useful lives.
Amortization expense for intangible assets tot$ie69,000 in fiscal 2013, $2.0 million in fiscal Z0and $3.3 million in fiscal 2011. The
carrying value of intangible assets at June 30320%3.4 million is expected to be amortized astraight-line basis of approximately
$760,000 per year.
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5. Marketable Securities

The amortized cost, unrealized loss and fair vafube Company’s available-for-sale marketable gtes at June 30, 2013 and 2012
were as follows (in thousands):

June 30, 201
Amortized Unrealizec
Fair
Cost Loss Value
Corporate bonds $ 2,37¢ $ 2) $2,37¢
Commercial pape 99¢ — 99¢
Total marketable securitit $ 3,37t $ @) $3,37¢
June 30, 201Z
Amortized Unrealizec
Fair
Cost Loss Value
Corporate bonds $ 5,95¢ $ 8) $5,95(
Commercial pape 3,04¢ — 3,04¢
Certificates of depos 95( — 95(
Total marketable securitit $ 9,954 $ (8) $9,94¢

During fiscal 2013, $7.8 million of marketable sgetias were purchased and $14.2 million maturedJuxte 30, 2013, the marketable
securities had maturities ranging between one amersmonths, with a weighted average maturity 8 3nonths.

6. Property and Equipment, Net
Property and equipment consisted of the followinglousands):

June 30,
2013 2012
Property and equipment $ 1,90¢ $ 1,937
Leasehold improvemen 317 321
Gross property and equipme 2,22¢ 2,25¢
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (2,04¢) (1,929
$ 17¢ $ 33t

Depreciation expense was $225,000 for fiscal 28190,000 for fiscal 2012 and $53,000 for fiscal 201

7. Fair Value Measurements

The Company accounts for certain assets and ligkifat fair value. The hierarchy below lists thieeels of fair value based on the ext
to which inputs used in measuring fair value arseoable in the market. The Company categorizds efits fair value measurements in one
of these three levels based on the lowest leveltitiyat is significant to the fair value measuretrerits entirety. These levels are:

» Level 1—Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) tivaenarkets that are accessible at the measuresaémfor identical assets and
liabilities.

» Level 2nputs are directly or indirectly observable in tharketplace, such as quoted prices for similagtass liabilities in activ
markets or quoted prices for identical assetsatmillties with insufficient volume or infrequentitrsaction (less active markef
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» Level 3—Inputs are unobservable estimates thasgpported by little or no market activity and regithe Company to develop its
own assumptions about how market participants wptitte the assets or liabilitie

The Company’s cash equivalents and marketable iesuare classified within Level 1 or Level 2 dxetbasis of valuations using quoted
market prices or alternative pricing sources andetsutilizing market observable inputs, respetyiv€ertain of the Company’s corporate
debt securities were valued based on quoted pliacdéBe specific securities in an active market ede therefore classified as Level 1. The
remaining marketable securities have been valugti®mbasis of valuations provided by third-participg services, as derived from such
services’ pricing models. Inputs to the models rimajude, but are not limited to, reported tradegoaitable bid and ask prices, broker/dealer
guotations, prices or yields of securities withigamcharacteristics, benchmark curves or infororapertaining to the issuer, as well as indL
and economic events. The pricing services may usatax approach, which considers information regay securities with similar
characteristics to determine the valuation foraisty, and have been classified as Level 2. Them@any’s A$ warrants, which expired during
fiscal 2013, were derivative liabilities, classifias Level 3 and valued using the Black-Scholesainod

The following table summarizes the Company’s assatised at fair value measured on a recurringsbasiune 30, 2013 and 2012 by
valuation hierarchy (in thousands):

June 30, 201:
Quoted prices ir Significant other Significant
Total Carrying observable input: unobservable input:
active markets
Description Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
Cash equivalent $ 6,33( $ 6,33( $ — $ —
Marketable securitie:
Corporate bond 2,37t 1,61¢ 75€ —
Commercial pape 99¢ — 99¢ —
$ 9,704 $ 7,94¢ $ 1,75¢ $ —
June 30, 2017
Quoted prices ir Significant other Significant
Total Carrying observable input: unobservable inputt
active markets
Description Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
Cash equivalent $ 4,29: $ 4,042 $ 25( $ —
Marketable securitie!
Corporate bond 5,95( 3,68¢ 2,26¢ —
Commercial pape 3,04¢ — 3,04¢ —
Certificates of depos 95( — 95( —
$ 14,23¢ $ 7,72¢€ $ 6,51- $ —

The Company’s derivative liabilities were classifi@s Level 3 and valued using the Black-Scholesaindd June 30, 2012, the fair
values were derived by applying the following asptions:

June 30, 201
Expected term (in years) 0.05
Stock volatility 90%
Risk-free interest rat 0.03%
Expected dividend 0%
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The reconciliation of the Comparsyfiabilities measured at fair value on a recurfiagis using unobservable inputs (Level 3) is Hevis
(in thousands):

June 30,

201¢ 2012
Balance at beginning of year —

$ $17C
Change in fair value of derivatives—other income —

_ ax
Balance at end of year —

$ . =

At December 31, 2011, the Company recorded a $bdli®n intangible asset impairment charge relateds Durasert and BioSilicon
technologies (see Note 4). These fair value meawmmts were determined using a combination of masksed and income-based valuation
methodologies, which incorporate unobservable mphereby classifying the fair value as a Leveléasurement within the fair value
hierarchy. The primary input used in the marketellaspproach was a 15% control premium that the @omnpstimated would be used by a
market participant in valuing these assets. Thmamy inputs used in the income-based approachdedliafter-tax weighted average cost of
capital rates ranging from 10% to 20% that the Camypestimated would be used by a market participant

The following table summarizes the Company’s assatsed at fair value measured on a non-recutvagjs at December 31, 2011 and
the losses recorded for the six month period tmelee (in thousands):

December 31, 201

Quoted prices ir Significant other Significant
Total Carrying observable inputs unobservable inputt
active markets Total
Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Losses
Finite-lived intangible assets $ 4,59¢ $ — $ = $ 4,59¢ $14,83(

There was no fair value measurement on a non-liagupasis at June 30, 2013 or at June 30, 2012.

8. Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses consisted of the following (iruznds):

June 30
2013 2012
Personnel costs $1,25¢ $14¢
Professional fee 28¢ 262
Clinical 35¢& 181
Other 1 16
$1,89¢ $60€

9.  Stockholders Equity
Sales of Common Stock and Warrants

In July 2013, the Company sold 3,494,550 sharéts abmmon stock in an underwritten public offeratca price of $3.10 per share for
gross proceeds of $10.8 million. Underwriter consiaias and other share issue costs approximated GKBR0

In August 2012, the Company sold 2,494,419 shdrés common stock and warrants to purchase 623s6@%es of its common stock in
a registered direct offering to institutional intes for gross proceeds of $5.4 million. The share$warrants were sold in units, each unit
consisting of one share together with 0.25 of one
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warrant, at a negotiated price of $2.15 per urathfEwhole warrant has an exercise price of $2.5@p@re and a five-year term, and became
exercisable in February 2013. Placement agentaieé®ther share issue costs approximated $700,000.

In January 2011, the Company sold 2,210,000 sldiries common stock and warrants to purchase 582s6@res of its common stock in
a registered direct offering to institutional int@s for gross proceeds of $11.05 million. The shand warrants were sold in units, each unit
consisting of one share together with 0.25 of oaerant, at a negotiated price of $5.00 per unithBahole warrant has an exercise price of
$5.00 per share and a five-year term. Placememit &ges and other share issue costs totaled $1li6rmi

Warrants to Purchase Common Shares
The following table provides a reconciliation of @5$ warrants for the years ended June 30, 20d28h2:

Year Ended June 30

2013 2012

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Number of Exercise Number of Exercise

Warrants Price Warrants Price
Balance at beginning of year 2,064,71i $ 6.17 7,614,74 $ 7.3¢

Issued 623,60! 2.5C — —
Expired (1,512,21)) 6.6( (5,550,03) 7.7¢
Balance and exercisable at end of 1,176,10! $ 3.61 2,064,71i $ 6.17

At June 30, 2013, the remaining lives of thesetantling warrants ranged from 2.6 to 4.1 years gsgting a weighted-average term of
3.4 years.

The following table provides a reconciliation of A% warrants for the years ended June 30, 2013284@:

Year Ended June 30

2013 2012
Weightec Weighted
Average Average
Exercise Number of Exercise
Number of Price Price
Warrants A$ Warrants A$
Balance at beginning of year 205,47¢ 7.6¢ 205,47¢ 7.6¢
Expired (205,479 7.6¢ — —
Balance and exercisable at end of — — 205,47¢ 7.6¢&

The weighted-average exercise price of these warteanslated to US$ was $7.80 at June 30, 201&séTA$ warrants expired on

July 19, 2012.

Because the potential exercise of the A$-denominaterants would have resulted in a variable amo@iptoceeds in the Company’s

functional currency, the fair value of the warramwtss recorded as a derivative liability, subjeatetealuation of the liability on a recurring basis

through the statement of comprehensive loss. Alsioé 30, 2012, the Company had no liability rectrde
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10. Stock-Based Compensatiot
2008 Incentive Plan

The pSivida Corp. 2008 Incentive Plan (the “2008PI permits the issuance of stock-based awardgéotors, employees and
consultants. Awards may include stock options,kstqapreciation rights, restricted and unrestriceatk, deferred stock, performance awards,
convertible securities and cash grants. At Jun@03, the number of shares reserved for issuamderdhe 2008 Plan was 4,841,255, of
which 1,056,459 shares were available for new asvarde 2008 Plan includes an “evergreen provisibat allows for an annual increase in
the number of shares of common stock availablésgrance under the 2008 Plan. On the first dayai éiscal year until July 1, 2017, the
number of shares reserved for issuance under 0 R@an will be increased by the least of (i) 790,8hares; (ii) 4% of the then outstanding
shares of common stock; and (iii) any such lessenuat of shares of common stock as is determinatidCompensation Committee of the
Board of Directors. The number of shares resergeds$uance increased by 750,000 shares on JA1B.

Options to purchase a total of 616,760 shares graneted during fiscal 2013 at exercise prices etputie closing market price of the
Company’s common stock on the NASDAQ Global MaKsSASDAQ") on the respective option grant dates. Of this tafations to purchas
411,760 shares were issued to employees with eatatsiual vesting over 4 years, options to purcBsg00 shares were issued to a non-
executive director with ratable annual vesting ®&gears and options to purchase 145,000 sharesiggred to non-executive directors with 1
year cliff vesting. All options have a -year life.

The Company measures the fair value of optionsiein grant date using the Black-Scholes optionipgiecnodel. Based upon limited
option exercise history, the Company has geneuasligd the “simplified” method outlined in SEC StaAffcounting Bulletin No. 107 to estimate
the expected life of stock option grants. Managerbetieves that the historical volatility of the @pany’s stock price on NASDAQ, for which
there has been trading history for approximatebyy@&ars, best represents the expected volatiligy the estimated life of the option. The risk-
free interest rate is based upon published U.Sashy yield curve rates at the date of grant cpmeding to the expected life of the stock
option. An assumed dividend yield of zero reflabes fact that the Company has never paid cashetigisland has no intentions to pay
dividends in the foreseeable future.

The key assumptions used to apply the option priciedel for options granted under the 2008 Plamduhe years ended June 30, 2(
2012 and 2011 were as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Option life (in years) 5.50- 6.25 3.50- 6.25 3.50- 6.25
Stock volatility 95%- 98% 88%- 97% 95%
Risk-free interest rat 0.81%- 0.98% 0.53%- 2.02% 1.13%- 2.35%
Expected dividend 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

The Company recognizes compensation expense fpitlmlportion of options that are expected to v@ated on historical trends, the
Company applies estimated forfeiture rates to dater the numbers of awards that are expected to Additional expense is recorded if the
actual forfeiture rate for each tranche of optioangs is lower than estimated, and a recoveryiof pxpense is recorded if the actual forfeiture
rate is higher than estimated. The Company asstsséarfeiture rate at the end of each reportiagqa. The Company begins to record stock
based compensation expense for performance-batied®pat the time it becomes probable that thegetsge performance conditions will be
achieved. The Company continues to recognize tet giate fair value of performance-based optiormuthh the vesting date of the respective
awards so long as it remains probable that theetlgerformance conditions will be satisfied. kcél 2012, the Company reversed $121,0(
expense for performance-based options that wefeited in that year.
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The following table summarizes information abowicktoptions for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2682011 (in thousands except
per share amounts):

2013 2012 2011
Weighted-average grant date fair value, per share $1.2¢ $2.41 $3.24
Total cash received from exercise of stock opt — 114 17
Total intrinsic value of stock options exercis — 11¢ 12

At June 30, 2013, there was approximately $748¢g¥QMhrecognized stockased compensation expense related to unvestédagitions
which is expected to be recognized as expenseaoweighted average period of 1.65 years.

The following table provides a reconciliation abait option activity under the 2008 Plan for fis2all 3:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Remaining
Average Contractual Aggregate
Number Exercise Intrinsic
of options Price Life Value
(in years) (in thousands’
Outstanding at July 1, 20: 3,053,35! $ 3.1C
Grantec 616,76( 2.1
Forfeited 115,56¢) 3.31
Outstanding at June 30, 20 3,554,54! $ 2.92 6.67 $ 4,087
Outstanding at June 30, 2(—vested or unvested and expected to 3,498,05: $ 2.97 6.64 $ 4,03¢
Exercisable at June 30, 20 2,400,61i $ 2.7¢ 5.8¢ $ 3,057

Employee Share Option Plan

The Company’s Employee Share Option Plan (the “Plarovided for the issuance of non-qualified stagkions to eligible employees
and directors. As of June 30, 2008, no furtherasgticould be granted under the Plan. Options autistg under the Plan, denominated in AS,
had vesting periods ranging from immediate vesting-year graded vesting and a contractual lifévefyears.

The following table provides a reconciliation abait option activity under the Plan for fiscal 2013:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual
Number Exercise Intrinsic
of options Price Life Value
A$ (in years) A$
Outstanding at July 1, 20: 112,50( 5.5C
Expired (112,500 5.5(C

Outstanding and exercisable at June 30, : — — — —

At June 30, 2012, the weighted-average exercise pifi outstanding and exercisable options trarsliate US$ was $5.59.
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Stock-Based Compensation Expense

The Company'’s statements of comprehensive losadad total compensation expense from stock-basgdgrat awards as follows (in
thousands):

Year Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011
Compensation expense included
Research and developm $ 632 $ 597 $ 40C
General and administratiy 68E 814 1,65

$1,317 $1,41] $2,052

11. Retirement Plans

The Company operates a defined contribution pleanthed to qualify under Section 401(k) of the Urernal Revenue Code.
Participating U.S. employees may contribute up5o bf their pretax compensation, as defined, subject to statut@yimums. The Compar
matches employee contributions up to 5% of eligdgmpensation, subject to a stated calendar yéennkd Revenue Service maximum.

The Company operates a defined contribution pendeam for U.K. employees pursuant to which the Campmakes contributions on
behalf of employees plus a matching percentagéeofiee employee contributions.

The Company contributed a total of $231,000 farefi2013, $181,000 for fiscal 2012 and $160,000igwal 2011 in connection with
these retirement plans.

12. Income Taxes
The components of income tax benefit are as follpwghousands):

Year Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011

U.S. operations
Current income tax provisic $— $— $ 9€
Deferred income tax bene — (13) (209)

— 13 (119

Non-U.S. operations

Current income tax bene
Deferred income tax bene

Income tax benefi

The components of loss before income taxes arellasvs (in thousands):

U.S. operations
Non-U.S. operation
Loss before income tax
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$(117)  $(169  $(216)

Year Ended June 30
2013 2012 2011

$(10,10)  $(11.21H  $(5,519
(1,916) (13,789 (3,32)
$(12,01)  $(25,009  $(8,846)




Table of Contents

The difference between Compaggxpected income tax benefit, as computed by agptihe statutory U.S. federal tax rate of 34%otex
before income taxes, and actual tax is reconcilgtié following table (in thousands):

Year Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011
Income tax benefit at statutory rate $(4,086€) $(8,50)) $(3,00¢)
State income taxes, net of federal ber (569 (599 (350
Non-U.S. income tax rate differenti 14t 1,16: 22¢
Research and development tax cre (139 (15€) (10€)
Changes in valuation allowan 2,93¢ 7,50( 3,04
Expiration of state net operating loss carryforve 70¢€ — —
Other, ne 882 424 (27)
Income tax benefi $ (119) $ (169 $ (219
The components of deferred income taxes are asafsl(in thousands):
June 30,
2013 2012
Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss carryforwar $26,06¢ $24,02:
Deferred revenu 2,19¢ 2,341
Stoclk-based compensatic 2,58¢ 2,11¢
Provision for losses on note receiva 511 511
Other 843 572
Total deferred tax asse 32,20% 29,56¢
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangible assel 1,17 1,472
Deferred tax assets, r 31,03( 28,09:
Valuation allowanct 31,03( 28,09:
Total deferred tax liabilit $ $

The valuation allowances generally reflect limitat on the Company’s ability to use the tax attébuand reduce the value of such
attributes to the more-likely-than-not realizabhtecaint. The valuation allowance increased $2.9 omltluring fiscal 2013 and $7.5 million
during fiscal 2012.

The Company has tax net operating loss and taxtaaay forwards in its individual tax jurisdictis. At June 30, 2013, the Company
had U.S. federal net operating loss carry forwafdspproximately $54.7 million which expire at v@is dates between calendar years 202:
2033. The utilization of certain of these loss #adcredit carry forwards may be limited by Secsi@82 and 383 of the Internal Revenue Cod
as a result of historical or future changes inGoenpany’s ownership. At June 30, 2013, the Comeatystate net operating loss carry
forwards of approximately $17.0 million, of whicB.% million expires in 2013 and $13.9 million exgsrbetween 2031 and 2033. Additiona
at June 30, 2013 the Company had net operatingtosg forwards in the U.K. of £18.7 million (appimately $28.5 million). During fiscal
2013, the Company recognized a current income ¢aefit of $117,000 related to foreign researchdenklopment tax credits earned by its
U.K. subsidiary.

The Company’s U.S. federal income tax returns &emdar years 2002 through 2012 remain subjectamiation by the Internal
Revenue Service. The Company’s U.K. tax returngisocal years 2006 through
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2012 remain subject to examination. The Australéenreturns for the former parent company for figears 2004 through 2008 remain sub
to examination.

Through June 30, 2013, the Company had no unrezegax benefits in its consolidated statementoofprehensive loss and no
unrecognized tax benefits in its consolidated badasheets as of June 30, 2013 or 2012.

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company had croied penalties or interest related to uncertaiptsitions.

13. Commitments and Contingencie:
Operating Leases

The Company has leased its office and researchdtdyy space in Watertown, Massachusetts througfi 8p2014. In addition to base
rent, the lease agreement requires the Compargytfop utilities, taxes, insurance, maintenance @hér operating expenses. The Company
leases laboratory and office space in Malvern, thkough August 2016, subject to a 6-month advarodiee of cancellation at September
2014. The Company also leases certain office eqeipmnder operating lease agreements that expoegh calendar year 2016.

At June 30, 2013, the Company'’s total future mimmease payments under non-cancellable operatasg$ewere as follows (in
thousands):

Fiscal Year:

2014 $362
2015 75
2016 18

$45€

Rent expense related to its real estate and offe¥ating leases charged to operations was appredyn®54,000 for fiscal 2013,
$466,000 for fiscal 2012 and $449,000 for fiscal 20O

Litigation
The Company is subject to various routine legatpedings and claims incidental to its business¢lvhianagement believes will not
have a material effect on the Company’s financisifion, results of operations or cash flows.

14. Segment and Geographic Area Informatior
(&) Business Segmer

The Company operates in only one business seghmang the biotechnology sector. Operating segmemetsdentified as components of
an enterprise about which separate discrete finhimformation is available for evaluation by tHeef operating decision maker in making
decisions regarding resource allocation and asggepsirformance. The chief operating decision makaie such decisions and assessed
performance at the company level, as one segment.
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(b) Geographic Area Information
The following table summarizes the Company’s reesnand long-lived assets, net, by geographic areébaqusands):

Revenues Long-lived assets, ne

2013 2012 2011 2013 2012
uU.S. $1,87¢ $2,38¢ $4,88: $ 55 $ 57
U.K. 27C 1,141 83 124 27¢
Consolidatec $2,14: $3,52¢ $4,96¢ $ 17¢ $ 33t

15. Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)
The following table summarizes the quarterly resaftoperations for the years ended June 30, 20d2@12 (in thousands except per

share amounts):

Total revenues

Operating los!

Net loss

Net loss per sha—basic and dilute:

Weighted average common shares-
basic and dilute

Total revenue

Operating los!

Net loss

Net loss per sha—basic and dilute:

Weighted average common shares-
basic and dilute:

Fiscal Year 2012

First Quarter

Second Quarte

Third Quarter

Fourth Quarter

Ended Year Endec
September 3C Ended Ended Ended
December 31, March 31, June 30, June 30,
2012 2012 2013 2013 2013
$ 55% $ 58t $ 513 $ 492 $ 2,14
(2,590) (2,649 (2,817 (3,98)) (12,03)
(2,55)) (2,609) (2,799 (3,949 (11,900
$ (0.1]) $ (0.11) $  (0.12) $ (0.17) $ (0.5
22,29 23,29 23,29 23,29, 23,04
Fiscal Year 2012
First Quarter Second Quarte Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
Ended Year Endec
September 3C Ended Ended Ended
December 31, March 31, June 30, June 30,
2011 2011 2012 2012 2012
1) (2) 1, 2)
$ 1,65¢ $ 63C $ 53¢ $ 69¢ $ 3,52¢
(2,53)) (17,649 (2,729 (2,310) (25,217)
(2,429 (17,460 (2,68¢) (2,262) (24,839
$ (0.2 $ (0.84) $ (019 $ (0.11) $ (119
20,757 20,80: 20,80: 20,80: 20,79:

(1) Results for the first quarter of fiscal 2012lirded $1.1 million of revenue related to the teration of a field-of-use license by Intrinsiq

(see Note 3)

(2) Results for the second quarter of fiscal 2012 idetla $14.8 million impairment wr-down of finite-lived intangible assets (see Note
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Exhibit 21.1
List of Subsidiaries of pSivida Corp.

Subsidiary Name Jurisdiction of Incorporation
pSivida US, Inc Delaware
pSiMedica Limitec United Kingdom

pSivida Securities Corporatic Massachuset!



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegjion Statement Nos. 333-152146 and 333-16820Borm S-8 and Registration
Statement No. 333-185549 on Form S-3 of our regated September 27, 2013, relating to the congelidinancial statements of pSivida
Corp., appearing in this Annual Report on Form 16fkSivida Corp. for the year ended June 30, 2013.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
September 27, 2013



Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Setties Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended.

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Paul Ashton, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of PSIVIDA CORP. ;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dondtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nisadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anale responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedortge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitiiat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fofigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a samiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 27, 2013

/s/ PAuUL A SHTON

Name: Paul Ashton

Title: President and Chief Executive Officel
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursua nt to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Seatties Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended.

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Leonard S. Ross certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of PSIVIDA CORP. ;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dondtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nisadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anale responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedortge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitiiat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fofigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a samiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 27, 2013

/s/ L EONARD S. Ross
Name: Leonard S. Ross
Title: Vice President, Finance
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuamt $ection 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

In connection with the Annual Report of pSivida Eofthe “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year endede 30, 2013, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date@h@he “Report”), |, Paul Ashton, President andeElxecutive Officer of the Company,
certify that to the best of my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc
2. The information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdétion and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: September 27, 2013

/sl PAuUL A SHTON
Name: Paul Ashton
Title: President and Chief Executive Officel
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 32.2

Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuait ection 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

In connection with the Annual Report of pSivida Eofthe “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year endede 30, 2013, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dateh@he “Report”),l, Leonard S. Ross, Vice President, Finance ofxbmpany, certify the
to the best of my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc
2. The information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdétion and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: September 27, 2013

/s/ Leonard S. Ross
Name: Leonard S. Ross
Title: Vice President, Finance
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)




